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Si: PETE?S

- December 15, 2003

To the Cltlzens of the Clty of St Peters MlSSOUl‘l -

"The comprehensuve annual Fnancnal report of the Clty of-St.: Peters, MISSOUI‘I (Clty) for ‘

the fiscal year’ ‘ended September 30,2003 is hereby -submitted. Respon5|bllltyl for both.
the accuracy of the’ data, andwthe completeness and- fairness of the" presentation,
including all\dlsclosures restslw1th the City.. To the- best of our knowledge and’ beliéf,

" the enclesed data are accurate in all materlal respects and @re: reported in a manner
. designed to present fajrly the financial’ position ‘and results of operations of- the varlous '

funds and account groups of the’ City.. All disclosures; necessary to.enable the reader to

»-galn an understanding of the City* s ﬁnancral actrwtles have been |ncluded

A

0 Management of the Clty is responsrble for' establlshmg and malntalnlng an mternallf

contral structure deS|gned to ensure'that the-assets of the City are protected. from loss,
theft, or m|suse and to ensure. that. adequate accountlng data are compiled t0\allow for .

“the, prepal*atlon of flnanClaI \statements in conformity . thh generally - accepted’
account;ng prmcxples (GAAP) The mternal control structure is de5|gned ‘to -provide .
- reasonable, but not absolute, .assurance that these cﬂ)Jectlves are met. The concept of
. reasonable assurange-recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control “should not exceed- the -

beneﬁts Ilkely to be -derived; and (2) ‘the valuatlon of costs -and beneFts requrres .

- @stimates and. Judgments by management ‘ A

\
-~ ;
/ i

In acldltlon state Statutes require an annual” audlt by mdependent certlﬁed publlc
accountants The accountmg “firm* of Rubin; Brown, Gornsteln, & Company. LLP was- -

“retalned by the City. ~The. mdependent auditors’ report on;the financial statements .of- :
the governmental activities, -the business- type actIVItles, each major fund; and. the -

aggregate remaining fund- information is- mcluded in the Fnanc1al sectlon of thls report

GAAP require that management provide a narratlve mtroductlon overv;ew and analysis
to accompany the basic Fnanaal statements in the form’ of Managements Dlscussmn
and Analysis (MD&A). ‘This letter of transmittal is- de5|gned to. complement MD&A and
should be read in- conjunctlon wrth it. ~The City of St. Peterss MD&A can be found

lmmed|ately following : the report of the lndependent auditors. - - , R

" _ PROFILE OF. THE- GOVERNMENT

The Clty of St Peters mcorporated in 1910 is a fourth class crty located in St E

_ Charles County, Missouri. The City currently occupies -a land area of "21. 9 square

miies and services a populatlon ‘of- apprOXImately 2/,000. The uty is traversed DY‘

“Interstate 70-which provides direct access to St. Louis, approximately 20 miles east

of the City, and-to Kansas City/- approxnmately 220 miles west-of the City. Regularly

gscheduled air_passenger and freight service is avallable at Lambert St. .Louis -,
International Alrport located approximately 12 miles east of the City on Interstate. .

70. CommerC|al -air service is available - at twa. private a|rports wrth|n St: Charles '

i
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» 'County and at a -publlc‘,alrp\ort operated -by St. Charles County. Barge seEVice lS

‘available on the Mississippi River located approximately 5 miles from St. Peters. The
City is served by two railroads; the Norfolk & Southern and the Burlmgton Northern,.

and three common-carrier truck lines.

" The legislative body of the City is the Board of Aldermen, which is comprised of EIth
aldermen and a mayor. Two aldermen are elected from each of the City's four-wards
and serve four- -year terms. The Mayor, elected at large to serve a four-year term, is
the presiding-officer of the Board of Aldermen. The Mayor may vote in the event of a
tie vote by the Board of Aldermen Add|t|onally, the Mayor has veto power. A city

administrator is appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of .

.Aldermen. The city administrator is the. chief assistant to. the' Mayor and is
responsible for the day-today management\ of the City's business and staff. The C|ty
-administrator is also responsible for the employment "and dlscharge of City

employees under policies establlshed by the Board of Aldermen The City also hasan_
assistant -city - administrator who is appomted by the Mayor with the advnce and-

. consent-of the Board of Aldérmen. " In’ addition to performmg city admlnlstratlve
functlons, the assnstant city admmlstrator also serves as dlrector of Fnance s

The City has several advrsory boards and commlttees composed of cntlzens appomted L
. by the Mayor with the' advice and consent of-the Board of: Aldermen The advisory

boards and committees lnclude, among others e-Government. Adwsory Commlttee

“Route 370 TIF- Commrssron Personnel ReVIew éoard the Parks, Recreatlon and Arts
Advisory Board, \Hlstorlcal Commlssmn, the Cable: AdV|sory ‘Board, Golf Citizéns

- Monitoring Commlttee and - ‘Outpatient Surglcal iTreatment Center Medical’ Review

Board and Solid: Waste Environmeéntal Issues. AdV|sory Board\ In addltlon, the Mayor .

with the advise and consent of the Board of Aldermen appomts citizens to other
boards and tommlssmns Wthh have responsublllty for governmental -functions
relatlng to zoning and bundlng codes These boards and ‘commissions are :the

Planning -and. Zomng Commission, the Board of AdJustment ‘and the Board of '

Appeals S - s v

: B N
/ —"'-/ . - - A

The City has approxumately 497 full- tlme equrvalent employees and provrdes a full

. range ‘of services, including¥ pollce protection; the construction-‘and. mamtenance of .

' roads, brldges and other lnfrastructure W|th|n the City; " programs to assist. low to

,moderate income residents; storm water, control ,programs; and' recreatlonal activities -
and cultural events.. 'In addition,; the Clty provrdes water and sewer serwces solldff,

-waste collection, and operates a SOlld waste transfer facnllty and recycllng center "\
<, 2
Annually, the City’s long<range Capltal Improvement Plan for the General Fund

' Recreation Fund Local Parks and Storm~Water ‘Fund, Old Town Levee Spec1al
Allocation_Fund, Transportatlon Trust Fund Central’ Materials - Processmg Fund, Solid -
“Waste Fund, and Water/Sewer Fund is. re- evaluated and updated The Mayor Board -

of Aldermen, City Administrator.and Assistant Clty Admlnlstrator work together to set

the goals, which are based upon input from citizens, the Mayor and Board. of
Aldermen and City ‘staff, for the City of St. Peters for the upcoming fiscal year. ‘A - .
~Capital Improvement Plan is then approved and serves as the blueprlnt for the.

.. preparation of future budgets o ‘.

lncorporatmg the (,apltal Improvement Plan the Clty Admlnlstrator prepares an
annual budget for the General, SpeCIal Revenue, and Debt Service Funds for the
fiscal year commencing ‘the following October. In addition, budgets for the Central
Materials Processing, Solid Waste, and Water Séweér Funds are prepared on-a basis
similar to that of the general governmental funds in order to better manage. these
funds. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriation at the fund level.

ii-




After a proposed budget is prepared; it is submitted to.the Board of aldermen for ..
review. The Board of Aldermen may revise, alter, increase .or decrease the .items
contained in the proposed budget, provided that total authorized expenditures from
any-- fund -do -not. exceed the estimated revenues to. be received. plus - any

unencumbered balance or less any deficit estimated for the beginning ‘of the. budget . -

year, - Following public hearings on. the proposed -budget the annual operating -
budgets are- .approved, .though “the adoption .of .the budget ordinance by the

-affirmative.vote of a majority of the members. of the Board of Aldermen and approval
- by the Mayor on or before September 1, of the preceding budget year. If the
- budgéts have not been passed and approved on or before the last day preceding -the

budget year (September 30), the budgets-and -appropriations for the current-fiscal
year shall ‘be deemed to be re-budgeted and re- approprlated for .the budget year:
until a new budget is adopted and approved

. The City Admlnlstrator is authorlzed to transfer part or all, of any'un'expende’d

balance among any. departments-within.a given_fund. -'If it is determined that the -
original ‘budgeted revenues and expenditures-need. to-be increased or decreased, the.
Board of Aldermen may, by ordinance, make such changes in budgeted revenues and
expend|tures SO.. long as the:total budgeted expendltures do not exceed the amount
of budgeted revenues' plus beginning unencumbered fund balance. If it appears

" probable that -revenues . available. will be - insufficient. to meet " the -amount .

appropriated;” the . Board of Aldermen may, by -ordinance, reduce one or more

rapproprlatlons

In addltlon the Clty mamtalns budgetary controls The objectiye of ‘these budgétary -
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions -embodied in the annual.

appropriated budget approved by the -City's Board of Aldermen. The City also'.

maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accompllshlng

budgetary control. Encumbered amounts. do not lapse at year-end. All- encumbrances:_,.

are supported by’ elther a purchase order.or a contract

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules lncluded in the fmancnal sectlon of o

this .report, - the City : contlnues to -meet; its. responsibility. for, sound financial ;
management . . T R

. T

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

Local Econormg

P k. - 3 ¢
RN R i f

The City's di.ye‘rsifiedl,economy and commercial growth is attributable to its
transportation network, central location in the United States, and expa‘nding -
resources of labor and materials. Residential growth has -been considerable as an
outgrowth of expanded employment opportunltles in the area. At the same time,. the

_City continues to grow as-a suburban communlty .

The’ Clty currently has approxmately 2000 busmess estabhshments of whlch,
* approximately 30 are involved in manufacturlng There are several major shopping

corridors. in St. Peters. and’ the City serves as a shopping hub to surroundlng_

A A Flae C+ Chawl A ThAa
\_UIIIIIIUIIILICD IUL.GLCU LIIIUUBIIUUL JI. \,ual"les bUdllLy i Cll..y T ICLCIII DCIVI\.C airea

encompasses an . estimated 30-mile radius with a populatlon of approxnmately )
350,000 in the 10-mile radius immediately surroundmg the City. '

The: Iargest shopping center in St. Peters, Westfield Shoppingtown Mid Rivers (the
“Mall”) is also the largest shopping center in St. Charles County. The approx1mately

1



1,000, 000 square feet Mall opened in. “The mall has- four anchors including J.C.
Penney, Sears, Famous: Barr and Dlllards T N " ’

Due to these factors, ‘over the past- the Clty has been able to réduce the property tax

rate from $1.85 per hundred dollars of valuation in 1970 to 90 ¢ents per hundred

dollars of valuation (sixty-four cents in the General Fund and twenty-six cents in the:
Debt Service Fund) without cutting any City services. The .assessed valuation for the -
City of - St. Peters continues to increase and revenues received during the 2003" flscal ;

year were based upon $744, 021 148 of assessed valuation.

The populatlon of St. Peters is younger than the natlonal average and of the state of

Missouri. The median age of the population in 2000 was 34.2 years compared to 36.1.°

years for Missouri. Approximately 37% of St. Peters’ residents ‘are under the age of 25
years, Older adults 65 years and above compnse 7.8% of the populatlon

According to statistics from the Unlted States Bureau of Census, in 2000 the Cltys

civilian labor force was 28,956. - The total number of- people that were unemployed
was 619 which was an unemployment rate of 2.1%. The City’s unemployment rate
compared favorably to St. Charles County which had an unemployment rate of 2.8%.
In addition, St. Peters' residents over the. age of three enrolled -in ‘school--totaled

15,841. " The percentage of the City’s -adult population who graduated from high -
school was 91.4% and’ 27.2% of the population obtained a bachelor’'s degree or'
higher. This compares favorably to the State of Missouri which had a population

graduated from high school of 81 3% and a populatlon obtalnlng a bachelors degree
or higher’ of 21. 6% ‘

Cash Manaqement

Cash .on hand ‘during the year was invested in demand deposits, savings accounts,
certificates of deposit, and obligations ‘of the U.S. Treasury. The City's investment
policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on

its portfolio. Most City investments are in instruments that-have a maturity of less than - -

one year. This is necessary because surplus funds must be available for the next fiscal

year should the Board of Aldermen decide to appropriate these monies. “All City ™

deposits and investments are either insured by federal depository insurance,
collateralized, or-held by the counterpartys trust department or agent in the City's
name. Acceptable collateral are obligations of the U. S. Treasury, U. S. government
agencies, State of Missouri, and local governments in Missouri with populations greater

than 400,000. The City's primary investment risk is "Reinvestment Risk”. This is the:

risk that the Cltys short-term lnvestments may be reinvested at lower ylelds upon
matunty : :

Risk Manac@ment

Since July 1998 the Clty ‘has had self-lnsurance for its general l|ab|l|ty, property and

workmen'’s compensation claims. The self-insurance program is administered through
a structured program involving a- major broker and third party claims administrator.
Losses are limited through the purchase of umbrella insurance policies, which limit

losses at the individual claim level and at an annual aggregate of all claims combines-
for a year. ' Prior to 1998 the Clt\/ participated in a self-insurance pool Wlth other"»'a-

Missouri municipalities.”

v
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OTHER INFORMATION

Certificate of Achlevement Award

The Government Flnance Off“cers Assocuatlon of the Unlted States and Canada (GFOA)
“awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reportlng to the City of
St. Peters for our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002. 'In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an  easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Report, whose contents conform to program .standards. Such
reports must satisfy both generally accepted-accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. The City of St. Peters-has received this prestigious award since 1991.
. We believe this report continues, to conform to the Certificate .of Achievement Program
requirements. Since the Certificate of-Achievement'is valid for a perlod of one year
only, we will be submitting this report to the GFOA for the|rA review.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was made possible by
the dedicated service of thé entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of
the department and all City employees who supplied information have my smcere
apprecnatlon for the contrlbutlons made in the preparatlon of this report. -

In closmg, WIthout the leadershlp, mterest and support of the City Admmlstrator ‘
Mayor, and Board of Aldermen, preparation of this report would not have been possnble

In addition, I commend the dedicated efforts of Rita Westerson, “Accounting Manager,
and her finance department personnel and ‘would like to thank Beth’ French Budget
Analyst, for her efforts in preparation of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

Tfmothy M.’Wilkinson: . *
Assistant City Administrator
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Independent Audltors Report

" The Honorable Mayor and Members
" of thé Board of Aldermen *
City of St. Peters, Missouri

- We have‘audlted the accompanymg financial statements of the governmentalz ‘
‘activities, the business-type activities, eachi major fund, and the aggregate’

remalnmg ‘fund information of City of St. Peters, Missouri, ~as of and for the

year ended September 30, 2003, which collectlvely compnse the City of St S

* " ‘Peters, Missouri’s basic ﬁnanc1al ‘statements as listéd in the table of contents. .
-These financial statements are the résponsibility of Clty of St. Peters,
“:Missouri’s management. OQur responsibility i is to express oplmons on these
*. finarncial statements based on our audit.”.

We. conducted our audit -in.accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we

- plan and perform the-audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

" Inour opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund .
information of City of St. Peters, Missouri, as of September 30, 2003, and the
respective changes in. financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accountmg principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amerlca

As described in Note 1, during fiscal year 2003, City of St. Peters, Missouri,
adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments; GASB Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion.and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments: Omnibus, GASB Statement No. 38,-Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosure, and GASB Interpretation No. 6,
Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities. and Expenditures in
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.



The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the Board of Aldermen
City of St. Peters, Missouri

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 15 and the Budgetary Comparison
Information on pages 52 through 55, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of St. Peters, Missouri’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules - supplementary
information and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic, financial statements. The supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us, in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation :to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The 1ntroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to
the audltlng procedures applied in the audit of the basw financial statements and, accordingly, we

express no opinion on them. .
Ao isarn, Bpmitacns § G LLP

December 15, 2003.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ThlS section of the City of St. Peters’s annual fmancral report presents our drscussron and analysis of the
Crty s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on September- 30 2003. This is the first

‘year that the City of St. Peters has prepared financial statements in accordance with ‘the gurdellnes

prescrlbed in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, and therefore,

comparatrve information for the previous fiscal -year is not being provrded Comparatrve information -
will be provided in future years. Please read this section in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the .
front of this report and the City’s ﬁnancwl statements, which follow thrs section.

2

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

‘o - The assets of the City exceeded 1ts liabilities (net assets) at the énd of the ﬁscal year by

approximatély $80 million.” Net assets is comprised 'of $37.7 million invested in capital assets, net of

related debt; $11.7 million restricted for capital projects, debt service-and other purposes; $19.4
* million unrestricted and available for govemmental purposes and $11 2 rnllllon unrestricted and

available for the Clty s business- -type act1v1t1es o LT '

¢ The City’s total net assets mcreased by $8.9 million over the course of this year’s operatrons
Governmental activities 1ncreased by $84 mrlhon and busmess type actrvrtres mcreased by
$500,000. ‘

e The City issued capital appreciation bonds, with an original purchase price of $6, 83I 69'0and a final

maturity of $12,970,000 in June 2003. This was the second series of bonds that were authorized by
voters on April 6, 1999 for. the purpose of acqurrmg, constructing, extending and’ improving the
existing, combined waterworks and sewerage system of the City. The utilization of caprtal ,
appreciation bonds allows the waterworks and sewerage system operatrons to mamtam annual debt -
service at pre-issuance levels throughout the life of the bonds. :

o Durin'g fiScal year 2003, the 'Citj o'f‘Sh't‘. Peters’s assessed v'al‘uation increased'by o.ver $11 ~million>.‘ . ‘

"o The City entered into a long term, contract at below market cost “for hauling and drsposal of SOlld;

waste. As a result, we experienced a 4% decrease in landfill expense, the largest expense related to’

_our transfer fac111ty and recycling center (the Central Materials Processing Facility Fund), despite an
jmcreased volume transferred to the landfill. The new contract posrtrons the City to stabilize this
'expense in future years while others face drastic i 1ncreases in the, cost to dlspose of solid waste.

e The City of St. Peters expended $5.2 million towards road, bridge and traffic signal constructlon of
which, 35% was funded with 1ntergovernmental grants. In addition, the City expended $2.7 in major
reparrs to existing infrastructure.

e TherCity’s recreational facility, the REC-PLEX, continued an aggressive membership campaign and

consequently increased membership by almost 100 passes to an all time high of 1,875. This is
significant since the General Fund subsidizes the. Recreation Fund and the increased profltabllrty will
help the City elrmmate future subsidies.



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This arinual report consists of four part; management’s discussion and analysis (this section); ‘the basic
financial statements; required supplementary information; and an optional section that presents
schedules for non—ma]or budgeted governmental funds, budget based schedules for enterprise activities,
and statistical information for the City. The basic ﬁnanmal statements include two kinds of statements
that present dlfferent views of the City.

e The first two statements are gevennnent-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. :
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¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City .
' government, reportmg the Clty S operatrons in more detail than the government-wide statements.

> The governmental"‘funds statements tell how . ——
general government services like public safety - e

were financed in the short term as well as what

~ remains for future spending.
> " Proprietary fund statements offer short-and long-
* term financial information about the activities the
government operates like businesses, such as the

~ water and sewer system. . T T
The financial statements also include notes that explain wotimest | | Samets Nz

some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by - . . ‘
a section of required supplementary information that further Sumrary <::::$> Dasl
explains and supports the information in the financial )
statements. Figure MDA-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to
one another. In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining
statements that provide details about our non-major governmental funds which are added together . and
presented in single column in the basic ﬁnan01al statements.

soud

Figure MDA-2 summarizes the major features of the City’s ﬁnancral statements including the portton of
the City government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remamder of this
overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure dnd content of each of
the statements. ' ‘
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Figure MDA-2 )
Major Features for the City of St. Peters Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide : - Fund Statements

Statements Governmental Funds

“Ehtire City: government -The actwmes of the City that -
:(except fiduciary: Funds)- are.not:

'e City’ s compo enit fi

Reyqni'red Financial - » ~ Statement of net aséets Balance Sheet . Statement of net assets‘

Statements 8
Statement of activities Statement of revenues, Statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes expenditures, and changes
in fund balances in net assets

Statement of cash flows
corual accounting” - Accr: e

al accountmg and
ict resources

s e < resources focus LR SRRt
Type of asset/liability All assets and llabllltles Only assets expected to be All assets a ities, both

information both financial and used up and liabilities that financial and capital, and short-term
capital, and short-term come due’d.uring the yearor and long-term
and long-term . soon thereafter: no capital ! -
. assets included

venueand - . Revenuesforwhich cashis Al
en ‘es durmg year e -Arecewed durmg or soon after
‘r_'the en of'the _year B -

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about ‘the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.- The statement of net assets includes a// of
the govemment s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted
for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash was received or paid.

The two govemment -wide statements report’the City’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets—the difference between the City’s assets and liabilities—is one way to measure the City’s

financial health or posmon

e Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the health of the City you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes
in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads ‘ ~

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:



o Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as the police,
public works, parks depaxtments and general administration. Property taxes and sales tax finance
most of these activities.

e Business-type activities—The City charges fees to cover the costs of certain services it provides.
The City’s waterworks and sewerage. system, solid wasté collections, transfer station and recychng -
facility, and Public Improvement Corporation are-included here.

Financial Analysis Of The City As A Whole
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City of St. Peters is not required to restate prior periods
for the purposes of providing comparative information. However, in future years, when prior year °
information is avallable a comparative analysis of government—vwde mformatlon will be presented.

Net Assets

The following table reflects the condensed statements of net assets-as of Séptember 30:

Table MDA-3

City E)f‘.!St. Peters's Net Assets
Governmental Business-type ‘ C
- Activities - Activities Total
" Current and other assets .. .'$ 32,911,090 '§$ 17,149,870 $ 50,060,960
Capital assets (net of depreciation) . . ) . . 56,050,398 44,704,072 100,754,470
Total assets : g - 88,961,488 61,853,942 150,815,430
Long-term obligations 37,056,785 23,100,108 ‘ 60,156,893 .
Other liabilities 7,600,249 2,958,884 10,559,133
Total liabilities 44,657,034 26,058,992 70,716,026
. Net assets o , . , oo .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 17,817,073 19,933,025 37,750,098 _
Restricted . 7,062,110 4,700,413 11,762,523
Unrestricted . - - :19,425,271 11,161,512 30,586,783
Total Net Assets ' : $ 44,304,454 $ 35,794,950 $ 80,099,404

As seen in Table MDA-3, the City’s total assets of $150.8 million include $50 million in current and
other assets and'$100.8 million in capital assets. Included in the $56 million in capital assets related to
governmental activities; and in accordance with GASB Statement No, 34, assets for roads, bridges, and
other governmental infrastructure assets acquired during the current fiscal year were included in these
statements.- However, governmental infrastructure assets acquired during prior fiscal years are. not
included at this time. The Clty will include infrastructure assets acqulred during prior. years in future
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The City’s total liabilities of $70.7 million include $60.1 million that is not due or payable in the next
fiscal year and $10.6 in other liabilities.




“Total net assets of $80 million is comprised of $37.7 million invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; $11.8 million restricted for capital projécts, debt service and other purposes; $19.4 million
unrestricted and available for govemmental purposes and $11.1 million unrestncted and avaitlable for the
City’s business-type activities. :

Changes in Net Assets

.The Clty s combmed net assets increased by almost $9 mllhon during fiscal year 2003 as a result of the

act1v1ty shown i in: Table MDA-4. _
T Table MDA~4
Clty of St Peters s Change in Net Assets

’ ;Govemmentalv/ Busmess—type‘ '

- " “Activities Activities = Total.
Revenues - -
Program Revenies - S IR 4
. _Charges for services. . : $ 5,833,242 $ 13,700,741 $ 19,533,983 - 32.4%
Operating Grants and Contributions 3,310,766 758,055 4,068,821 6.7%
Capital-Grants and Contributions 3,951,170 298,427 4,249 597 7.0%
‘General Revenue .0 - . .. . : ' o : 0.0%
. Property Tax., e 8,822,830 . - 8822830 14.6%
-Sales Tax, . - . ... 18,753,307 © - 18753307 31.1%
-Other Taxes - .~ .~ . . . 2692959 - - - 2,692,959 4.5%
Interest: T 767,316 142,102 © 909,418 1.5% -
-Lioss on Sale of Capltal Assets (108,304) - - - (108,304) -0:2%
. Other o 1,430,202 - 1,430,292 2.4%
' Totalrevenues = 45,453 578 14,899,325 -. 60,352,903 ’
Expenses ' B ' R : i
General government ST : 1,918,385 - 1918385 - 3.7%
Administration -~ ¢+ - - RE 5,813,016 - 5,813,016 11.3%
“Police - Ta e 8,586,747 .- 8586747 16.7%
"Municipalcourt - .. - 294,193 TS 294 193 0.6%
Public Works e : - 5,456,970 - 5,456,970 10.6%
Engineering o ‘ 2,012,693 - 2,012,693 - 3.9%
Maintenance c . ... . .. 878392 .- . 878392 - 17%
- Health S 664,390 . . - - 564,390 . 1.1%
‘IParks and recreatlon T . -8,092,134" - '8,092,134 - 15.7%
_Community relations .. . sores8 | - 807,688 . 1.6%
. Community and arts ~ . 7 368784 - . 366784  07%
Interest on-long-term debt | T4 2,265,041 ¢ - 72265041  4.4%
Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer o - 7,189,717 7189717 = 14.0%
Solid Waste -~~~ - N o - 2871588 - 2,871,588 - - 56%
‘Public Improvement Corporation .. . > . "7 -. . 764809 ~ .764,809 1.5%
Central Materials Processing’ Facuhty ... - " . 3528825 ., 3528825 6.9%
" Total expenses 37,056,433 14,354,939 51411372 - .
- Increase (decrease) in net assets ' $ 8397145 $ 544,386 $ 8,941,531



For the fiscal year ‘ended September 30, 2003, government-wide - revenues totaled $60.4 million.
Approximately one-third of all revenues are derived from charges from services and one-third from sales .
tax.

Figure MDA-5
City of St. Peters
Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2003

\ interest Other Charges fof
narges for
Othe;;l/'axes__ ______ 2% 1 /o ~— services
o i 32%

Sales Tax
31%

Operating Grants
-and Contributions.

Property Tax T Capltal Grants 7%
15%% and Contributions
i 7%

S ce T = Charges for /services . are derived
Figure MDA-6 ‘ from users of the City’s programs
. City of St. Peters o .

Analysis of Charges for Services Revenue such as athletic programs at the

- REC-PLEX, the City’s recreational

- Other : S complex, and fees for the users of
Charges for . : .

Services | the City’s waterworks anq_ sewerage

- 13% systern and other business—type

activities. As seen in Figure MDA-

Wéter_‘Sew er.

19%

other charges for services.

The second largest revenue source for the entire city“is‘sales tax which during the current fiscal year
~equaled $18.8 million. The City of St. Peters has a 1% tax to fund general governmental activities, a
5% tax that funds the City’s transportation activity (road construction and maintenance) and a .1% tax
for park and storm water activities. In addition, the City has three Tax Increment Financing Districts
and sales tax recelved for. these districts is restricted to funding activities within the respectwe area.

The total cost of all ~pro.grams and services were $51.4 million during fiscal yeeir 2003. _The City’s
expenses cover a range of services including parks and recreation, policing, administration and public
works. Approximately one quarter of all city expense during the current fiscal year are related to
business-type activities. . : : TR

Solid Waste . 36%
Q . y

15% T 6, the City’s water and sewer
- s operations account for over one- .
] Parks and : Contral i third of all charges for services,

Recreation - \ 1 .
e Materials followeq by the‘ Central Materials
Processing Processing Facility, Parks and
Facility Recreation, Solid Waste and all




Figure MDA-7
" City of St. Peters -
Functional Expense for Flscal Year 2003
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. debt
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’ F’ubhc Works
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Governmernital Activities

Revenues for the City’s govemmental activities total $44 million, of which over 40% is sales tax, 20% is -
property tax .and 13.2% is charges from services. Expenditures for the City’s. govemmental activities
total $41.7 rmlhon which results in an increase in net assets for the fiscal year of $2 3 rmlllon

Flgure MDA 8 present the cost of each of the Clty S largest programs as well as the program’s net cost
‘(total-cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). ‘The net cost: shows the
‘ﬁnanmal burden. that was placed on the C1ty s taxpayers by each of these functions. : :

4 As_; statedztearller, the»cost« of all governmental act1v1»t1es ‘th1s year_ was $37.l rml_llon;«: however, ‘the
amount that our taxpayers paid for these servicés.through City taxes was $24 million. ' The remaining
-cost was related to programs that charge those who directly benefit ($5.8 million) and from grants and.
-COHtI‘lbutIOHS of ($7.3 million). The City paid for the $24 million “public-benefit” portlon with taxes,
interest 1ncome and other revenue such as the sale of land and surplus equ1pment '

Eigure MDA®
Net Cost of City.of St. Peters's .
Governmental Activities

Total Cost - Net Cost

of Services of Services
Administration . $ 5,813,016 '$ 5,813,016
" Engineering - ¢ 2012693 ! - 2,012,693 *
- Géneral government " 1,918,385 . ~ - " - 838,803 -
interest on long- term debt- 2,265,041 . - 2,265,041
Other - o 2,911,447 - - 2,683,987
.. Parks and recreatlon . 8,092,134 - - :4,238,689
-0 . Police C 8,586,747 . 5,862,016
S Public Works - - 5456,970 .- . 247,010 .

57 056, 433§ 2306126 . ..



Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the City’s business-type activities increased $300,000 to $14.9 million and expenditures for
decreased $305,000 to $14.4 million, resulting in an increase in net assets for the fiscal year of
$500,000. (Refer to Table MDA-4.) Factors contributed to these results included:

o A $278 000 increase in revenue in the solid waste operatlons resultmg primarily from a user fee

" increase; operating expense.rose $45,000 due in part to an increase in salaries.

* A $317,000 increase in rental revenue in the Public Improvement Corporation (PIC) for a. new
agreement with the City of St. Peters related to an upgrade in the City-wide communication system,
a facility. to house Construction Management and the cable telev151on operations of the City, and
solid waste vehicles.

e An $111,000 increase in revenue related to the water commerc1a1 accounts and sewer residential
accounts and a $92,000 increase in the amount of tap-on revenue in the water and sewer operations;
operating expense decreased by $286,000 or 4.2%. The majority of the decrease is due to the
increased production of water therefore saving the expense for purchasing: water from: another
source.

o A $698,000 decrease in revenue related to contributed capltal from developers in the water -and

- sewer operations. Contributed capital from developers varies dependmg upon when the developer
dedicates the water and sewer structures to the City. P

e A $134,000 increase in recycling revenue which is driven by the amount of materials we receive at

the Central Materials Processing Facility and the fluctuations in market prices for-the commodities;
: operatlng expense decreased by $52,000 due to decreases in deprec1a’oon and landfill fees offset by'
increases in personnel costs. : A

e A $72,000 increase in miscellaneous revenue from all busmess-type funds from an increase in
‘revenue from water line construction, insurance proceeds in the sohd waste operatlons and
donations at the Central Materials Processmg Facﬂlty =

FUND E INAN CIAL STATEMENTS

Another major section of the bas1c ﬁnanc1al statements is the fund financial statements. These
statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds—not the City as a
whole. "A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to track specific sources of funding and spending
for particular purposes. :

The City of St. Peters has two k_inds of funds:

e Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentlally the same functions
reported as governmental act1v1t1es in the government—w1de financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements are prepared on a
modified accrual basis, which means they measure only current financial resources, uses and
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Therefore, capital assets and
other long-lived assets, along with long-term liabilities, are not presented in the governmental fund
statements. Because the governmental funds statements provides a detailed short-term view that
helps determine whether there are more or .fewer. financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City’s programs, it is useful to compare the information presented for the
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governmental funds with similar. information presented .for governmental activities in the -
government-wide financial statements. . By-doing-so, readers may-better understand the long-term -
impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
 the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a
- reconcrl1at10n to facilitate. th1s comparlson between govemmental funds and. governmental act1v1tres

. ‘Proprretary funds = Servrces for whrch the Crty charges customers a fee are generally reported in

“proprietary funds. ‘The City of St. Peters has-only one type of proprietary funds; the-enterprise funds. . =

Enterprise funds are used to report-the same functions presented-as business-type activities in the -
government-wide financial stdtements; the: Clty s waterworks and sewerage system, solid- waste
activities, and. transfer station and recycling facility (CMPF). - Proprietary fund statements are
prepared on:a full-accrual method and include all their assets and liabilities, current and long-term.
Thls is the same basis used in the govemment—wrde statements. .

‘ Fmancnal Analysrs Of The Clty S Funds R R R A e

- As discussed earlier, there:are two types of statements included in the basic financial statements. - This

discussion relates to the fund financial statements that focus.on individual parts:of the City. government,

. reporting the Crty s operations in- more detail. than the government-wide statements. . These- statements
- are prepared on a modified accrual. basis for the governmental funds and, as in the govemment-w1de
_statements, on a full accrual method for the business-type activities or proprietary funds. A

reconciliation from the-fund statements to the government-wrde statements is provrded to drsplay the

. differences i 1n the two reportmg methods : .

The City'of St. Peters has_ twelve indlvidual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
_the governmental fund statements for the general fund, the transportation trust fund and the debt service
“fund, all of which are “considered major funds. Data from. the othér nine governmental funds are
combined into a smgle aggregated pfesentatlon Individual -fund data for each of ‘these. nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the other: suppleméntary
information section of this report. The City of St. Peters adopts an annual budget for each of the major - .
" funds and a budgetary comparrson schedule has been provrded to demonstrate comphance with thls
budget. R : C

" The Clty s governmental funds reported a combmed fund balance of $27 6 mrlhom a. sllght increase of -
$95,000  from the prior fiscal year. Approxrmately, $13.4 million of this .total amount ‘coristitutes ..
unreserved fund balance, "which is available for spending.at the government’s. d1scret10n The remainder
of fund balance is reserved to 1nd1cate that it rs not avallable for new spendmg because it has already .

been commrtted for: the followmg G, L s

hquldatlon of contracts and purchase orders of the prior per10d ($8 million),
* capital improvements:($147,500), e

. gtorm-water mqnaopmpnt (‘Rl RQ ﬁﬂﬂ\

inventory and‘tprepalds ($842,000),

-long-term debt ($306,000),

Natatorium Foundation expend1tures ($2.1 million),
and other purposes ($2.7 million)
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The primary reasons for changes in fund ‘balance include those highlighted in the financial hlghlrghts
section of this document.- In addition, these other changes in- fund balance should-be noted:

The General Fund serves as the chief operatlng fund of the Crty of St. Peters. It is used to account for all *
financial resources except those. that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The activities of
the general fund include policing services, administration and governmental, parks and recreation and
engineering. During fiscal year 2003, the General Fund fund balance increased by $648,500. : Asa -
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it-may. be useful to compare both. unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 13.6% of the total
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 30. 4% of. that same amount.’ A

Key factors for the i increase in fund balance 1nclude events dlscussed prev1ously and the followmg

¢ Continued efforts to limit operating costs to the amount recelved in operating resources, not utllrzrng
one time windfalls such as the sale of land to cover everyday expenditures.

¢ Continued growth in both the residential and commercial areas. During the fiscal year, 431
residential and 79 commercial building permits were issued with estimated construction values of:
$55,996,636 and $61,680,082, respectively. The resulting increase in: property tax revenue allowed<
us to cont1nue provrdlng the high qual1ty of service that our residents enjoy.

o Contrnued efforts to get all budgeted funds to'stand on their own. In fiscal year 2002/03 the Local o
Parks and Storm Water Fund, Transportation Trust Fund, Central Materials Processing Facility
Fund, Solid Waste Fund and Water Sewer Fund d1d NOT requrre any subs1dy from the General _
Fund. ' '

e The City aggresswely sought new retail enterprrses and many new stores and restaurants opened
during the ﬁscal year.

The other two major funds of the City are the Transportation Trust Fund and the Debt Servicé Fund.
The fund balances in the Transportation Trust Fund decreased by approximately $500,000 to $8.7
million. Of this amount, $2 million is unreserved and $6.7 million is reserved for the liquidation of
contracts and purchase orders of the prior period. The decline in fund balance is attributed to
expenditures -for maintenance of our existing infrastructure and new infrastructure construction of $7. &
million -offset by resources of $7.3- million. Although there was a slight decline in the current year, -
revenues are forecasted and expendrtures for road projects are planned a long-term basis in the City’s
Capital Improvement Plan to énsure adequate funding and fund balance are available. The fund balance
of the Debt Service Fund only changed by $5,000 to a total of $1.9 million, all of which'is available for
debt service in future years.

The other nine non- major govemmental funds had a $30,000 decrease in fund balance to a total of $6.5
million. Of this $3 million is unreserved and $3.5 million is reserved for various uuilgb -such as the

liquidation of contracts and purchase orders of the prior period and the Natatorium Foundation.
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GEN ERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the fiscal year, the City of St. Peters’s. elected ofﬁc1als rev1sed the budget several:
- times. . These:revisions generally are amendments and. supplemental appropriations approved during the

long~term Capital Improvement Plan process, adjustments to reflect: the actual beginning account

balances from the prior year’s-actual results, to incorporate adjustments for carried-over items from the

previous budget year, to reflect any changes in estimates used when the original budget was adopted, or

to reflect changes for unanticipated events that may arise throughout the fiscal year The significant

variations between the origlnal and final budget 1nc1ude ~ :

e Due to eco‘nomic conditions the original estimation for sales.tax revenue was reduced by $500,000;
however, this decrease was- offset by increases in the revenue received in property tax from the
'increase in assessed valuation and an increase in franchise taxes received because of an increase in
the cost of natural gas. o

e In_addition, revenue received from the State of Missouri for the motor fuel tax and fees and
additional -grant revenue 1ncreased intergovernmental revenues by $350,000." The City of St. Peters
reduced the expected revenue related to court fines and costs during the course- of the year based
upon expected actual. '

¢ The City of St. Peters sold surplus land. during the fiscal year and a. $900 000 budget amendment was
done to reflect this revenue. ‘

¢ In addition, during the year general fund expenditures were decreased by approxrmately $475 OOO to;_', ‘

reflect savings primarily due to the cost of personnel.

.+ Transfers to reserves were adjusted during the year by $1.1 mrllron to reserve funds for the Crty S
self-insurance programs

Significant variations between final budget and actual budget amounts include an additional savings
related to salary, fringe benefits- and employee expenses of $664,000 due in part to an adJustment to the
vacation accrual and vacant positions, -$200,000 saved in legal fees and other professional services, and .
- $174,000 saved in repair and maintenance related to the computer system and storm sewers, and -
$239,000 saved in capital expendltures for items such as computer equipment pollce vehicles, and park-
vehlcles ' - :

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADN[INISTRATION

Caprtal Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2003, the City had invested $100.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation) in
a-broad range of capital assets including land, structures and improvements,.machinery and equipment,
water, and sewer lines, vehicles, and infrastructure. The total increase in the City of St. Peters’s
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately 9%. As discussed previously,
in accordance with GASB Statement No.. 34, assets for roads, bridges and other governmental -

infrastructure a assets ar\qnirpd Annhg the current figcal year ‘are |qcludpr‘ in ﬂ'\pcp amounts, I—Tn“/pvpr

governmental infrastructure assets acquired during prior fiscal years are not included at this time. The
City will. include infrastructure assets acquired during prior years in future financial statements in
compliance with GASB Statement No. 34 requirements.” Major capital asset events during the current
fiscal year included the following: '
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This year’s major capital assets included:

e There were $2.7 million in capital asset additions for governmental-activities during the fiscal ‘year. -
Some of the major projects include improvements to our park system ($583,000), storm water |

improvements to Spencer Creek ($340,000), improvements to the REC-PLEX such as interior

painting of the natatorium ($237, 000) which were paid primarily from Natatorium -Foundation | -
contributions, additional equipment for our Strect Maintenanee department ($327,000), and capital |

related to our computer systems ($272,000).

¢ Construction completed for Mid Rivers Mall Drive and Mexico mtersectlon and the Woodstone and
Queensbrook’ project. These projects added an additional $5.5 million in capital assets. - -

e Various building and system additions and improvements were completed in the Waterworks
Sanitary Sewer-Fund, adding $1.3 million in additional capital assets.

¢ Machinery and equipment with a value of over $1.5 million were added in the Public Improvement
Corporatlon The majority of these expendltures are related to a new citywide radio communication
system. " In addition, $393,000 was added in structures and improvements to the new C1ty facrhty
that houses our Construction Management department and cable operations.

Outstanding encumbrances for capital assets at the end of the fiscal year were $8 million. ‘This amount
has been accounted for in the City’s budget based statements and the City has no plans to issue
additional debt to finance these projects. More detalled mformat10n about the. City’s capltal assets is
presented in Note 4 to the financial statements

Long-Term Debt

At September 30, 2003, the City had a number of debt issues outstanding. These issues included -

$29,250,000 of general obligation (G.O.) bonds,‘ $8,936,000 of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) notes,
$18,827,724 of water/sewer revenue bonds, and $6,560,000 of PIC leasehold revenue bonds. - The Clty
continues to mamtam 1ts Al rating from Moody s Investor Service on general obhgatlon issues.

Under the statutes of the State of Missouri, the Crtys general obligation bonded debt is limited to no
more than 10% of the most recent assessed valuation of the City. At September 30, 2003, the City was
~ well within this limit with a legal debt margin of $47,012,289. -This does not include an additional debt
limit of 10% of assessed valuation available for street, waterworks, or electric plant improvements. This
additional debt margin amounted to $74,402,115 at September 30, 2003. Additional information about
the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.
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Figure MDA9
City of St. Peters's Outstanding Debt

September 30, 2003
Govemmental Business-type ' . Total Total
Activties Actidties i Percentage
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 Change
General obligation (G.0.) bonds $ 30905000 $29,250000 § - § - $30,905000 $29,250000 5.355% f
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Notes 8,679,000  8935,000 ) 0 .- 8,679,000 8,936,000 3.0%
Water/Sewer revenue:bonds (net of unaccréted capital appreciation) 1] 0 - 12,847,504 18,827,724 12,847,504 18,827,724 46.5%
", PIC leasehold revenue bonds Q 0 7,025,000 6,560,000 7025000 . 6560000 . -656%

- TOTAL . § 39584000 $38,186,000 $ 19,872,504 § 25387,724  $59,456,504 $63,573,724 6.9%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The downturn in our hation’s economy has affected the budgets of many states and municipalities as
well as citizens across the United Statés. We continue to read reports in the news about the economic

. difficulties facirig legislators on both the state and national levels. Many cities across the country have

had to.cut programs because of reduced revenue. However, the ‘proposed fiscal year 2003/04 budget

~ continues to fund all current City services while we maintaining the same commitment to customer

service. In.fact, we have expanded services with our community development block grant program; -

* storm water detention program, and for the new budget year, our sewer lateral and private streets

programs. All of this was accompllshed whlle reducmg the property tax rate from 90 cents to 85 cents
per $100.00 of assessed valuation. : :

The City’s waterworks and sewerage system increase fees by 2.5% and the solid waste division
increased fees by $1 a month. In addltlon various other fees increased in order to cover the cost. of
programs. :

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial -report is designed to -provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors. and

~creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and demonstrate the City’s accountability for

the money it receives. If you have -any -questions about this report or need additional 1nformat10n

: contract the Clty of St. Peters Fmance Department P.O. Box 9, St. Peters, MO 63376.
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

- STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2003

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets )
Cash and short-térm investments $ 26,506,401 $ 11,811415 38,317,816
Investments — 1,113,043 1,113,043
Receivables (net):
Taxes 2,596,887 — 2,596,887
Services — 1,606,995 1,606,995
Intergoverrimental 1,981,450 — 1,981,450
Interest 13,093 10,196 23,289
Other 333,824 447,954 . 781,778
Internal balances 331,284 (331,284) —_—
Inventories 842,048 98,533 940,581
Investment in joint venture L — 2,393,018 2,393,018
Long-term receivables " 306,103 —_ 306,103
Capital assets: .
Non depreciable 16,463,705 1,883,977 18,347,682
Depreciable 39,586,693 42,820,095 82,406,788
Total Assets 88,961,488 61,853,942 150,815,430
Liabilities
Accounts payable, 1,750,539 558,619 2,309,158
Accrued interest 731,708 176,289 907,997
Other accrued liabilities 1,507,011 208,668 1,715,679
Deferred revenues 178,145 -— 178,145
Deposits and escrow funds 89,819 - 111,225 201,044
Other liabilities 1,618,027 34,083 1,652,110
Long-term liabilities: o
Due within one year 1,725,000 1,870,000 3,595,000
Due in more than.one year 37,056,785 23,100,108 60,156,893
Total Liabilities 44,657,034 26,058,992 70,716,026
Net Assets
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 17,817,073 19,933,025 37,750,098
Restricted for: : :
Capital projects 3,144,994 — 3,144,994
Debt service 1,860,174 4,700,413 6,560,587
Other purposes 2,056,942 — 2,056,942
Unrestricted 19,425,271 11,161,512 30,586,783
Total Net Assets $ 44,304,454 $ 35,794,950 80,099,404
See the accompanying notes to basic financial statements. Page 16
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

' STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

Program Revenues

Operating E - Capital’

Net (Expense) Revenue And Changes In Net Assets

. ) Charges For Grants And ! Grants And Governmental Business-Type
Functions Expenses. , -. _Services Contributions - . Contributions Activities Activitles “Total
- — — - - - . - - , -
Governmental Activities . , . : . ) S ’
General government $ 1,918,385 ¢ $ 893,171 $ 12,087 $ 114,344 $°  (838,803) $ . - $ - .(838,803)
“Administration’ 5,813,016 . ' —_ . J— .= (5,813,016), — ~ (5,813,016)
Pplice 8,586,747 | 1,433,807 1,246,185 - 44,739 (5,562,016) - ' (5,862,016)
Musicipal court ‘ 204,193 ' - - - (294,199 - . (294,199
Public works - 5.456,970 - < 7,009 +1,700,000 3,502,951 (247,010) ) - VL (247,010)
Engineering 2,012,693 . - e - .(2,012,693) ' — (2,012,693)
Maintenance 878,392 S I, T _ (878,392) - (878,392)
Health ¥ 564,390 i 10,972 : — ' — (653,418) — '(563,418)
Parks and recreation 8,002,134 3,290,389 - 288,920 ) 274,136 (4,238,689) - (4,238,689)
Community relations 807,688 86,683 AR, 15,000 (706,008) — (706,005)
Comununity and arts 366,784 i 111,211 o 3,594 - . (251,979) - — (261,979)
Interest on long‘term debt 2,265,041 - . L — . I, . . (2,265,041) _ (2,265,041)
I7,056,433 75,533,242 3,310,766 3,851,170 123.961,255) — 33,961,956
Business-’l‘ype Activities . : . . ‘ ‘
. Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer 7,189,717 .~ 7,227,302 — 280,222 - 317,807 317,807
Solid waste T 2,871,588 | . 2,836,216 - - — (35,372) (35,372)
. Public Improvement Corporation: 764,809 . — . 158,055 — — (6,754) (6,754)
Central Materials Processing Facility 3,528,825 3,637,223 ' - —_ 18,205 — 126,603 126,603
s 14,354,930 " 13,700,741 - 758,066 798,427 — 402,284 302,284
- Total Government $ 51411372 $ 19,533,983 $ 4,068,821 % 4,249,597 ‘$  (23,961,256) - $ 402,284 $  (23,558,971)
' General Revenues: -
* Property taxes levied for: B N N
General purposes’ $ 5,319,788° $ — $ 5,319,788
Debt service . 2,06,7,646 — 2,067,646
Tax increment financing districts 1,436,396 — 1,435,396
Sales tax levied for: =
General purposes 10,510,456 — 10,610,466
Transportation purpbses : +5,255,188 — 5,255,188
5 Park and.storinwater purposes . 1,036,675 — 1,036,675
Tax increment financing districts : B 1,951,088 — 1,951,088
" Franchise and public service taxes 2,692,959 R 2,692,959
Earnings on investments . 167,316 142,102 ,909,418
Loas o8 sale of capital assets (108,304) — .{108,304)
Other revenues h 1,430,292 — - 1,430,292
« Total General Revenues 32,358,400 142,102 | 32,500,602
Change in net assets. - 8,397,145 544,386 8,941,531
. Net'Assets - Beginning Of Year 35,907,309 35,250,564 71,157,873
! . $ 44,304,454 $ 35,794,950 - $ 80,099,404

Net Assets - End Of Year

See the accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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© . -CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS'
September 30, 2003

”

Major Funds. Nonmajol'r-Funds'
Other Total
. Transportation Debt Governmental Govemmel;tal
Gene:ral Trust Service Funds Funds
Assets ' ‘
Cash and cash equivale[its:' i
Held by trustees $ — $ - % - $ 2,044,887 $ 2,044,887
Unrestricted ‘ 7674559 7,452,135 1,861,438 7473382 24,461,514
' Repeivables, net of allowances ) ‘
where applicable: . : » .
Taxes . 1,762,572 508,394 60,212 " 303,498 " 2,634,676
Intergovernmental 56,019 1,836,703 - — o 88,728, ' 1,981,450
Interest — — — *13,093 13,003
Other 87,182 86,649 - ) 159,993 " 333824 .
Due from other funds . 455,674‘ —_ — ) —_ 455,6’74
Long-term receivables — . — . — . '306,103 306,103
Inventory/prepaids © 827345 557, — 14,146, | 842,048
Total Assets $ 10,863,351 $ 9884438 $ 1,921,650 $ 10,403,830 § 33,073,269 -
Liabilities And Fund Balances
Liabilities : =
-Accounts payable $ 248,387 - $.1,124063 $ 1,264 $ 376,825 $ . 1,750,539
Accrued liabilities 1,359,725 . . 57,781 — . 89505 1,507,011
Due to other funds — 11,616 S 112,774 . 124390 .
Deferred revenue 153,1;78 . 40,025 60,212 .1 17,061 370,47§
Other liabilities 1,617,660 — - b 367 1,618,027
Total Liabilities - 3,378,950 - 1,233,485 61,476 ;786,351 - 5,460,262
Fund Balances
Reserved for:
Encumbrarnces ' . 431,094 6,627,735 — 919,024 7,977,853
Capital improvements ’ ’ —_ — — 147 457 147 457
Stormwater management : 189,7 19 — — — © 189,719
Inventory/prepaids 827,3«}5 557 — . 14,146 842,048
Long-term loans — — —_ 306,103 306,103
Other projects : . 2,602,157 — - 29,100 2/721,257
. Natatorium Foundation — — . — 2,056,942 2,056,942
Unreserved, reported in: ]
General fund 3,344,086 — — — 3,344,086
Special revenue funds ‘ — 2,022,661 — 2,999,713 5,022,374
Debt service funds — - 1,860,174 . — 1,860,174
Capital projects funds L — L 3,144,994 3,144,994
Total Fund Balances 7,484,401 8,650,953 1,860,174 . 9,617,479 27,613,007

* Total Liabilities And Fund Balances $ 10,863,351 “$ 9884438  § 1,921,650 $ 10,403,830 $ 33,073,269

See the accompanying notes to basic finaricial statements. = ‘ . ‘ Page 18
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'CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEIV[ENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES ‘AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

» For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Fs

~Amounts reported for governmental activities in the stabement of actlwtles are dlfferent
because -

Governmental funds report capltal outlays as expendltures However, in the statements of -
act1v1t1es assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $250 for general and $5, 000 for
‘infrastructure are capitalized ‘and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and -
-" reported- as depreciation. expense. -Donated assets are not:recorded in the governmental
‘funds but are recognized as revenue in the statement of act1v1t1es ThlS is the amount by
which capital outlays and donated capital assets exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlays ‘S -,
Donated capltal assets
Depreciation expense

2. In the statément of activities,.the loss on the.dispositioh of capital assets is-reported. The - -

lossis not a use,of current resources and thus is not reported in the funds.

i

- The- governmental’ funds report bond proceeds as an other ﬁnancmg source, ‘while repayment
~of bond principal is reported as an expenditure. In-the statement of net assets, however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities.
-Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds financial

" statements but reduces the long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

«

TIF notes debt issued
Repayment of bond principal

Under the modifies accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds the effect of

issuance costs, discounts and preiniums when debt is first 1ssued whereas these amounts
"_are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. Interest is recognized as an -
'ekpenditure in the governmental funds-when-it is due. -In the statement of activities,

interest expense is recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it is due. Some expenses

reported.in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources:

_and-therefore are not repérted as expendltures in governmental funds The net effect of these
- dlfferences 1s as follows

Accrued interest on bonds
"*Compensated absences
.Premium on debt issuances, net of amortization

" Deferred bond issuance costs, net of amortization

‘Property tax revenues received prior to the year for which they are being levied are reported
as'deferred revenue in the governmental funds. They are, however recorded as revenues in
the statement of activities. Deferred property tax revenues increased this year.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

[N ar e < e - - T - -

$ 95,475

$ 9,865,863
1,528,255

(4,266,079) 77,128,039

(108,304)

(257,000)" - .

1,655,000 - 1,398,000

271,159
(548,435) -
27,210,

T o) (270,578)

154,513

$ 8,397,145

}:See the aeeonlpanying notes to basic financial statements. -

"Page 21



‘CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
' SEPTEMBER 30 2003 '

Major Enterprise Funds

A , 3 Central
Waterworks/ ’ v ' " Public Materials’ _ Total
Sanitary Solid Improvement Processing En‘terprise
Sewer Waste Corporation Facility Funds
Assets . T
Current Assets . . ) ' -~
Cash and cash equivalents: . N o -
Held by trustees S $ . 508504 $ . — . $ 201,696 $ — % 710,200
Unrestricted ’ 7,064,691 .. — : 199,400 259,754 7,613,845
Restricted ’ . 2,907,966 — 679,404 ' — 3,587,370
Investments - restricted o ’ 1,113,043 —_ — — ’ 1,113,043
Receivables, net of allowances:
Services 1,104,829 434,971 — 67,195 1,606,995
Accrued interest - 10,196 — —_ . v - 10,196
Other 125,369 58,645 — . 263,940 447,954
Inventory/prepaids : 25 — — 98,508 98,533
Total Current Assets 12,824 623 493,616 . 1,080,500 689,397 15,088,136
Investment in joint venture 2,393,018 — - : i W — 2,393,018
Capital assets . 63,685,481 2,580,720 9,540,677 5,919,238 81,726,116
Less: Accumulated depreciation - 29,702,385 1,870,129 3,090,715 2,358,815 37,022,044
Capital assets - net 33,983,096 ~710,591 6,449,962 3,560,423 44,704,072
Total Assets 49,200,737 1,204,207 7530462 . 4,249.820 -62,185:226
Liabilities '
Current Liabilities: .
Accounts payable ’ 401,543 31,355 T 125,721 " 558,619
Accrued payroll 107,025 53,013 . — 48,630 208,668
Accrued interest payable 91,798 —_ 84,491 - = 176,289
Deposits held for others _ 111,225 — — — 111,225
Due to other funds . 90,192 © 14,988 ’ 178,309 47,795 331,284
Current portion of revenue bonds : )
payable (payable from . - . .
restricted assets) . 1,390,000 R Lo— . 480,000 . — . 1,870,000
QOther - 34,083 L — B L — — 34,083
Total Current Liabilities 2,295 866 99,356 742,800 222 146 3,290,168
Noncurrent liabilities: ’ o . )
Accrued vacation ’ 97,649 59,021 . — 42,391 . 199,061
Long-term portion of revenue bonds;payable 16,931,335 — 5,969,712 ) — 22,901,047
Total noncurrent liabilities T 7 17,028,984 59,021 5,969,712 42,391 23,100,108
Total Liabilities 19,254,850 158,377 6,712,512 264,537 26,390,276
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,661,761 710,591 250 3,560,423 . 19,933,025
Restricted for debt service . ’ 4,021,009 — 679,404 — 4,700,413
Unrestricted 10,263,117 335,239 138,296 ' 424 860 11,161,512
Total Net Assets : $ 29945887 $ . 1045830 $ . 817,950  $ 3,985283  -$ 35794950

See the ‘accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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- CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
- For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

T T T . C Major Enterprise Funds -

; o NI R - .Central ... =
o Coee Waterworks/ N - Public  Materials - Total
- T T - ;777 Sanitary " Solid ' Improvement - Processing " Enterprise

oot . : ’ ’ " Sewer Waste Corporation Facility @ Funds
Operating Revenues : ’ . o " .
Water - T $ £ 3,126,346 $ — $ — % — $ 3,126,346
Sewer .07 E S ] © 2,789,537 — - = . — ' 2789537
Solid waste. - R - 2,740,919 T <l — ' 2740919
-Taponfees. . F T 384,909 - . — . — 1. -384,909
Tipping fees — — : - 2,145,620 - 2,145,620
Rental income : — — 758,055 ° -~ — ' 758,055 -
" Recycling income — — — 1271617 1,271,617
"' Earth Centre ' — — T 208,447 208,447
Miscellaneous 926,510 95297 - e T -29744.° 1,051,551
Total Operating Revenues 7,227,302 2,836,216 758,055 '3,655,428° 14,477,001
- .Operating Expenses - . . o
" Personnel costs ] ) 2,494,118 1,381,573 o~ L 1266228 5141919
Depreciation : . . 1,707,264 286,073 459,360 179,704 . 2,632,401
Utilities ~  ~~ T . 7 420,332 J12,754 — 59499 - ' 492585
‘Purchased water . B 323,954 L= ; C— . - — -t 323,954
‘«Wastewater treatment costs * 87,145 — — . 96. - 87,241
‘Landfill fees : _ o . — 776,449 ) — 1,674,499 2,450,948
Repairs and maintenance _ T 425486 - 214,285 — . 38,687 678,458
Chemicals and supplies | . « o 216,917 3796 - % e 2059 222,772
Professional services L ’ 512,089 27795 — 7,198 . 547,082
Office expense 81,923 38,907 S s -156,338 - © 277,168
Insurance . n ’ 90,338 29,947 — 25,163 145,448
Gasoline and fuel B 41,083 . 75,447 - . 14,872 131,402
Bad debts . . S . T, 14325 5,003. e F o0 T Ulzs2 T 19710
_ Rent : o k - 39,721 1,735 — 3,835 . 45291
Miscellaneous’ -~ . - - - . -, : . | 23694 - 17,824 - . ‘990 100,265 . -142,773
Total Operating Expenses - 6,478,389 2,871,588 . 460,350 3,528,825 - 13,339,152
Operating Income (Loss) 748,913 (35,372) 297,705 - - 126603 °  ..1,137.849
) Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) ' ) : i
Interest on investments . . e T 119,954 . — 20,205 o -L,943 7 .142;102
Bond interest and fees (607,265) R ©(290,714) — 7 (897,979
Amortization of bond issue costs B (52,876) — (13,745) o = .(66,621)
Equity loss in joint venture T i (51,187) — — — © (51,187) -
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net ~(591,374) — (284,254) - 1,943 (873,685)
" Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions o 157,539 (35,372)° ' 13,451 . 128,546 264,164
" Capital-contributions 280,222 — o — 280,222
_Change In Net Assets , : 437,761 (35,372), . 13451 . 128,546 544,386
" Net Assets - Beginning of Year’ - 29508,126 - 1,081,202 804,499 - 3,856,737 35,250,564
_Net Assets - End of Year - $ 20945887 $ 1045830 - $ 817950 -$_ 3,985283 $ 35794950

: Se,é the accompanying notes to basic financial statements. - . A Page 23
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CITY OF ST. PETERS; MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

Major Enterprise F‘unds

Central
Waterworks/ Public Materials Total
Sanitary Solid Improvement Processing Enterprise
Sewer Waste  Corporation Facility Funds
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 6311,700 $ 2,711,091 $ 758,055 $ 3626697 $ 13,407,543
Payments to suppliers (2,470,927) (1,197,465) (990) (2,149,905) (5,819,287)
Payment to employees (2,473,152) (1,366,736) — (1,251,694) (5,091,582)
" Other receipts i 926,510 95,299 — 29,744 1,051,553
Net Cash Provided By Operatmg Activities 2,294,131 242,189 757,065 254,842 3,548,227
Cash Flows From Noncapltal Fmancmg Activities
Operating transfers in — —_ - — . —
‘Advances on (repayments of) internal balances 10,481 (101,499) (229,099) 21,821 (298,296)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital S
. Financing Activities 10,481 (101,499) (229,099) 21,821 (298,296)
. Cash Flows From Capltal And Related Financing
Activities .
Issuance costs on revenue bonds 52,876 — 13,745 — . 66,621
Proceeds from i issuance of revenue bonds 6,607,626 — — — 6,607,626
Principal paid on revenue bonds - (1,240,000) — (465,000) — (1,705,000)
‘Interest paid on revenue bonds (352,449) — (315,483) — (667,932)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets, net - (1,107,487) (140,690) (1,958,700) (120,425) (3,327,302)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital And Related .
Financing Activities 3,960,566 (140,690) (2,725,438) (120,425) " 974,013
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase.of investments 51,187 — — — 51,187
.Interest on investments 119,974 = 20,205 1,943 142,122
« Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 171,161 — 20,205 1943 . . 193,309
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash
Equivalents 6,436,339 — (2,177,267) 158,181 4,417,253
Cash And Cash E'quivalents - Beginning Of Year. . 4,034,822 — 3,257,767 101,573 7,394,162
Cash And Cash Equivalents - End Of Year $ 10,471,161 $ - $ 1,080,500 $ 259754 $ 11,811,415
- Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
"To Net Cash Provided By Operating
Activities - .
Operating income (loss) $ 748913 $ (35372) $ 297705 § 126,603 $ 1,137,849
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,707,264 286,075 459,360 179,704 2,632,403
Change in assets and liabilities: ' - : . . T
(Increase) decrease in service receivable 10,908 (29,828) — 1,013 (17,907)
(Increase) decrease in miscellaneous receivables (7,184) (21,399) — 42,266 .- 13,683
(Increase) decrease in inventory ' 26 — - (39,029) (39,003)
Increase in other assets — . 932 — ‘ — T 7932
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (198,020) 26,944 — (70,249)- (241,325)
Increase in accrued payroll 9,095 6,515 — 10,375 .. 25985
: " Increase in accrued vacation 11,871 8,322 — 4159° © 77 24,352
Increase in deposits held for others -11,075 — — - 11,075
Decrease in other liabilities © 183 T — — — 183
Total Adjustments 1,545,218 277,561 459,360 128,239 2,410,378
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 2,294,131 $§ 242,189 $ 757,065 § 254,842 § 3,548,227
Nonecash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities: )
During fiscal year 2003, the Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer Fund received $280,222 in contributed water and sewer lines from developers.
“See the accompanying notes to basic financial statements. ‘Page 24




CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

sy

I S
1.

e

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Summary of 'Signifi'cant‘Aeco'unti'ng- Policies -

'The City of St. Peters; M1ssour1 (the C1ty) was incorporated in 1910. The City operates asa’

fourth-class city under the Missouri state statutes under the Board 6f Aldermen/City
Administrator form of government. The Board of Aldermen is comprised of eight Aldermen

‘ anda Mayor The City provides the followmg services: public safety (pol1ce) public works,

publ1c improvements, water and sanitary sewer, residential trash colléction, recreation,

hcommumty development health planmng and zomng, and general adnun1strat1on

The account1ng pol1c1es and ﬁnanc1al report1ng practlces of the Clty conform to. accounting
o :pr1nc1ples generally accepted in the United States of America apphcable to governmental
) ent1t1es The followmg 1s a summary of the more s1gn1ﬁcant accountmg pol1c1es
) ‘Reportmg Entlty

.- The City deﬁnes its reportmg ent1ty in. accordance w1th Cod1ﬁcat1on of Governmental

Accounting .and. Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100.. The cr1ter1a used in

_‘determining. the scope of the entity for financial reporting purposes includes, but is not
~ limited to, the method of budget adoption, taxing authority, whether debt is_secured by

revenues or general obligations of the City, the obligation of the City to finance any deficits

; that ‘may occur, and superv1s1on over the aceounting functions. -

: uomponent units are or gamzatmns for which the C1ty as the prlmary government, 18

financially accountable. To be-considered financially accountable, the organization mustbe -

- fiscally dependent-on the City or the City must appoint. a majority of the board of the

organization and either 1) be able to impose its will-on the organization or 2) the relationship .
must have the potent1al for creating a ﬁnanc1al beneﬁt or. 1mpos1ng a ﬁnanc1al burden of the
C1ty : ;e . R _

Based on the foregoing, the City’s ﬁnancial’-‘staternents include all funds, account groups,
agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent on the
City. Accordingly, the City of St. Peters Public Improvement Corporation (the PIC) and the
City of St. Peters Natatorium Foundation, separate not-for-profit corporations, have been
reported as component units of the Clty and. blended as. a separate enterpr1se fund and a
spe01al revenue fund respectlvely =

The PIC was: formed in August 1990 for the purpose of famhtatlng the acqu151t10n and
construction of certain capital J..luyxuvcuu;utn ‘and facilities solely for the benefit of the City.
The City of St. Peters Natatorium Foundation was formed in November 1993 for the purpose
of accepting contributions from the community and using the resources to fund
improvements to the St. Peters Rec-Plex facility. There are no separate financial statements

issued for these component units.
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Adoption Of New Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2003, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments
(GASB No. 34), GASB Statement No. 37,-Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus (GASB No.: 37), GASB
Statement No: 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures (GASB No. 38) and GASB
Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Lzabzlztzes and Expendztures
in Governmental Fund Fmanczal Statements

GASB No. 34 (as amended by GASB No. 37) represents a very significant change in the
ﬁnanc1a1 reportlng model used by state ‘and local governments.

GASB No. 34 requlres gdvernment—wide ﬁnancial statements to be prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting.  Government-wide financial statements do not provide
information by fund or account group. Add1t10nally, the City’s statement of net assets
includes capital assets and long-term liabilities of the Clty, which were previously recorded
in the general fixed assets account group and the general long-term debt account group,
respectively. In addition to the fixed assets previously recorded in the general fixed assets
account group, the City is required to prospectively capitalize infrastructure assets starting .
“October 1, 2002 and will be required to retroactively capitalized infrastructure assets over a
period of four-years ending September 30, 2007. The government-wide statement of
activities also reflects depreciation expense on the Clty s capital assets, including capitalized
1nfrastructure

In addit—ion to the government-wide financial statements the City has prepared fund
financial statements, which continue to use the modified accrual basis of accounting for the
. City’s governmental funds and the accrual basis of accounting for the City’s proprietary
“funds, which‘is similar to that previously presented for these funds in the City’s financial
statements, although the format of financial statements has been modified by GASB No. 34.

-"GASB No. 34 also includes, as:required supplementary. information, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, which provides an analytical overview of the City’s financial
activities. In addition, budgetary comparison schedules are presented which compare the
original and final revised budget w1th actual results for the general fund and major special
revenue funds. - :

~ GASB No. 38 requires certain’ disclosures to be' made in the notes to the basic financial
statements concurrent with the implementation of GASB No. 34. While this statement did
not affect amounts reported in the financial statements of the City, certain note disclosures
have been added and amended including descriptions of activities of major funds, future debt
service and lease obhgatlons in five: year increments, and interfund balances and

tr dIldeLlUIlb
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These statements had a significant effect on the City’s financial reporting model. All
, statements wereretroactively applied to October 1, 2002. Restatement of net assets within
the government-w1de ﬁnanc1al statements - governmental activities is as follows:

Fund equity at September 30, 2002 — - Governmental Funds = $ 27,517,532
Reqmred GASB 34 ad_]ustments -

Long-term debt =~ . o . (39,584,000)
Net capital assets T 49,030,669
Accrued interest 4  (1,002,867)
 Bond issue costs, net - - ’ , ) ) e 226,119
~ .. Bond premium, net - - . S T (280,144)
. Restated net assets at October 1, _2002 o -$ 35,907,309

Government-Wlde And Fund Flnancml Statements

The government-w1de financial statements (i.e.; the statement of ‘net "assets and the
" statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.
~*The-&ffect of interfund activity has been removed from thése statements. Governmental
- activiti€s; whlchrnormally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactiéns, are reported separately from business-type act1v1t1es wh1ch rely

- "to a 51gn1ﬁcant extent on fees and charges to external partles
'~':The statement‘o'f activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct ex‘pense’s‘"of a given
-function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific funétion. Program revenues include 1) charges to
‘customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
" contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Taxes,
** "unrestricted interest earnings and other items not properlv 1nc1uded among program

" -Tevenues are reported lnstead as general revenues.

Following the government -wide financial statements are separate financial statements for

“governmentdl funds and proprietary funds: Major individual governmental funds are

" - reported as separate columns in thé fund financial statements. All other governmental

“funds are reported in one column labeled “Other Governmental Funds”. The total fund

balances for all governmental funds is reconciled to total net assets for- governmental =

* «’ . activities'as shown on' the statement of net assets. The net'change in fund balance for all

' governmental funds is reconciled-to the total change in nét assets as shown on the statement
of act1v1t1es in the government-wide financial statements.

- ‘Govérnimental funds are those through Which most governimental functions of the City are
- financed. The acquisition, use; -and balances of the City’s expendable financial resources and

’ »_the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprletary finds) are accounted for
through governmental funds. The meagsurement focug is nnnn determination of and changes °

“in ﬁnanc1al position- rather than upon neti income. The followmg are the Clty’ S governmental
major funds:"
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General - The' general fund ; is the general operatlng fund of the City. It is used to
account for all ﬁnanc1al resources except those requlred to be accounted for in another
fund.

Transportation Trust - The transportation trust fund is used to account for
- transportation sales tax revenues and grants to be used for the construction, restruction,
repair and maintenance of streets, roads and bridges. »

Debt Service - The debt service fund is used to account forthe accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

The other.governmental funds of the City are considered nonmajor. They are special
revenue funds which account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expendltures for specific purposes and the capital project fund which accounts -
for financial resources to be used for acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

4, Propnetary funds are used to account for activities. that are smular to those found in the

private sector. The measurement focus is on the determination of net income and capital

. maintenance. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and

operated in a manner similar to. prlvate business enterprises-- where the intent of the

governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or

~ services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered:primarily

. through user charges. The City has four enterprlse funds which are all considered major
funds as follows:

. Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer - The waterworks/sanitary sewer fund is used to account
-for the billing and collection of charges for water and sanitary sewer services for
customers of the waterworks and sanitary sewer system. Revenues are used to pay for
both operating expenses and capital expenditures to maintain these services.
Solld Waste - The solid waste fund is used to-account for the prov1s1on of solid waste
collectlon to the residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are
accounted for in this fund.

Public Im[ofovenlent Corpofation The public improvement corporation fund is used
to account for the acquisition and construction.of certain capital 1mprovements and
facilities solely for the benefit of the City. :

Central Materials Processing Facility - The central materials processing facility fund

is used to account for revenues and expenses resulting from the processing of solid waste.

Trash and recyclable materials are sorted by recyclable type(i.e., cardboard, newspaper,

. plastic, glass, aluminum, etc.). The sorted recyclables are then baled and sold to

. companies that use recyclable material-in the . manufacturing of their products. The
remaining material (trash) is taken to a landfill.
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... Governmental Account1ng Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and
F LnanCLal Reporting for Proprietary Funds: and Other. Governmental Entities that use

. .Proprietary Fund Accounting, offers the option of following all Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB). standards 1ssued after November 30, 1989, unless the latter
conflict with or. contrad1ct GASB pronouncements, The C1ty elected .not. to follow FASB
. standards issued after such date . : .

Measurement Focus And BaSlS Oof Accountlng

The government—w1de financial statements and all propnetary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis.of accountlng .Revenues are
recorded when. earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for

. which they are levied. . Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
"e11g1b1l1ty requ1rements 1mposed by the prov1der have been met.

‘ Governmental fund ﬁnanc1al statements are accounted for us1ng a current financial

. resources measurement focus. and the- modlﬁed accrual ‘basis of accounting. With this
,measurement focus only current financial resources generally are included on the balance ‘
sheet. The statement of revenues, expend1tures and changesi in fund balances reports on the

| ‘sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e. expend1tures and other
financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach. dlffers from the: manner in

~ which the governmental act1v1t1es of the government-w1de financial statements are reported.

" Governmental fund financial statements therefore -include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements
_and the statements for governmental funds

‘ Under the modified-accrual basis of accounting, revénues are récognized in the accounting
period in which they become both measurable and available. The term “available” is defined
.as collectible within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities.of the current period. For the City, available means expected to be

" received within 60 days of fiscal year- -end. Expenditures are generally recognized undér the
modified accrual basis of accounting when -the related fund liability is incurred.”
Expenditures for pr1nc1pal and interest on long-term debt are not recognized until due.

GASB 33 groups nonexchange transactions into the follow1ng four classes, based upon their
o principal characteristics: derived tax'revenues, imposed nonexchange revenues, government
‘ mandated non- exchange transact1ons and voluntary non- exchange transactlons :

The City recognizes assets from der1ved tax revenue transactions (such as sales and utilities
gross receipt taxes)in the period when the underlylng exchange transaction on'which the tax
is imposed occurs or when the assets are received, whichever occurs first. Revenues are
recognized, net of éstiinated refunds and estimated uncollectible amounts, in-the same
period that the assets are recognized, provided that the underlying exchange transaction has
occurred. Resources received in advance are reported as deferred revenues until the period
of the exchange. :

4
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The City recoguizes assets from imposed nonexchange revenue transactions-in the period
when an enforceable legal claim to the assets arises or when the resources are received,
whichever occurs first. Revenues are recognized in the period when the resources are
required to be used or the first period that use is'permitted. The Clty recognizes revenues
from property taxes, net of estimated refunds and estimated uncollectlble amounts, in the
period for which the taxes are levied. Imposed non- exchange revenues also include permits
and court fines and forfeitures.

Intergovernmental revenues, representing grants and assistance received from other
governmental units, are generally recognized as revenues in the period when all eligibility
requirements, as defined by GASB 33, have been met. Any resources received before
eligibility requirements are met are reported as deferred revenues

- Charges for services in the governmental funds, which are exchange transactions and are
therefore not subject to the provisions of GASB 33, are recognized as revenues when received
in cash because they are generally not measurable'until actually received.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperatmg items.
Opérating revenues and expenses generally result from providing serv1ces and producing
and dehverlng goods in connectlon with a proprietary fund’s principal ongomg operations.

“When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
v policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will beneﬁt periods beyond the fiscal year end
are recorded as prepaid items.

. Inventonies _
Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out

* (FIFO) method.  The cost of governmental fund-type invéntories i 1s recordeéd as expenditures
when consumed rather than when purchased :

Encumbrances : : .

~ Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the. expenditure. of funds. are recorded, is employed within the governmental fund
financial statements. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures
or liabilities and are reported as a reservation of fund balance to indicate that a portion of
the fund balance is not available for subsequent appropriation.
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Capltal Assets

Capltal assets, which include property, plant, equipment and prospectively’ reported&
1nfrastructure assets (e.g:; roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the -

: 'appllcable governmental or business-type" activities columns in the government-wide -
financial’ ‘statements.. Capital assets are definéd as assets with an 1n1t1al ‘individual cost of
$250 or more for general capital assets and $5,000 or more for infrastructure, and an

. estimated useful life in excess of one.year, Such assets are recorded at historical cost if .
purchased or constructed. ‘Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. °

In accordance with the tran51t10nal provision of GASB Statement No 34, general
'government infrastructure assets (streets; bridges, sidewalks) have not been fully
T »'capltahze_d retroaetlvely at September 30, 2003 but will be over the next four years.

" The costs.of normal malntenance and repairs that do not enharice functlonahty or matenally
“extend the 11fe of an asset are not caprtahzed ‘ :

. Capital assets are deprec1ated us1ng the straight-line method over r the followmg estlmated ‘
useful lives:

Buildings. C S . -30years
- 2" Structures and 1mprovements ‘. 20 years
* Water arid sewer lmesl ' ’ o 50 years -
» Streets, bridges and sidewalks 12 -50 years ‘
Furniture and other equipment 5 — 8 years
Vehicles _ o : 5 years
“Computer equipment o .. B years
Software o . L 3 years.
- Land improvement = ' . . 20years
Pool equipment 5 years
. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government—w1de ﬁnancral statements long term debt’ and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net assets. : Bond premiums and -
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
'usrng the effectlve interest method Bonds payable are reported adj usted by the apphcable
‘bond prem1um or d1scount and bond issuance costs.

'In the fund financial statements, governmental . funds recognlze "bond premlums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
-issued: is reported as other financing-sources.- Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance-costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
recelved are reported as debt service expendltures

Page 31



&

CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

Notes To Budgetary Comparison Information ( Contmued)

Debt Refunding

" For current and advance refundings resulting in defeéasance of debt reported by business-
" " type activities, the differénce between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the remaining
life of the old debt or new debt; whichever is shorter, using the straight-line method since the
results of the straight-line method are not materially different from the use of the effective
interest method. The deferred refunding amounts are classified as a component of bonds -
payable in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. '

Compensated Absences

City employees earn vacation during-the current year which must be taken in the

subsequent year. Accrued vacation time is recognized as a liability when earned and any

unused accumulated vacation is payable to employees upon termination. Accrued vacation

. isrecorded in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for

these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if the amount is due at year end and

payable with current resources. Sick leave benefits do not vest and are recorded as
-expenditures when paid.

Capital Contributions

Capital contributions in the enterprise funds represent government grants, contributions
and other aid to fund capital projects. In accordance with GASB 33, capital contributions are
recognized as revenue when the expenditure is made.and amounts became subject to claim
for reimbursement.

Interfund Transactions >

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the ﬁind through which the
resources are to be expensed are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in the
governmental fund financial statements. :

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize
the “grossing up” effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.

No‘nrotlltine or nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported as additiq‘ns to or
deductions from fund balances of governmental fund types and additions or deductions of
contributed capital or retained earnings, as appropriate, of the proprietary fund type.

-

Net Asse;ts"

In the government-wide and proprietary tund financial statements, net assetsis. dlsplayed m
three'components as follows ’ -
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‘Estimates And Assumptions

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capltal assets, net

of accumulated depreciation, less the outstandmg balances of any bonds, notes, orother

borrowings that re attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those
" assets. ' ‘ )

Restrlcted This cons1sts of net assets that are legally restrlcted by outSIde partles or.
by law through constitutional pr0v151ons or enabhng legislatlon ,

. Unrestrlcted This consists of net assets that donot meet the deﬁmtlon of “restrlcted”
- or “invésted in capital assets net of related debt.” o

Reserved Fund Balance

Reserved fund balance represents the portion of fund balance that is. not avallable for

~ subsequent year approprlatlons or is legally segregated for a spec1ﬁc future use.

Investment In Joint Venture

The Cltys investment in the St: Peters - St Charles Water Pipeline Project (the Joint
Venture) is recorded on the equity method of accountlng, taking into consideration
capltahzed interest.

Statement Of Cash Flows

- The propnetary funds considers all highly 11qu1d 1nvestments (1nclud1ng restrlcted assets) .

with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

_. The preparation of general purpose financial statements in conformity with accounti_ngi’
_ principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the City to make
- estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at fiscal

year-end and revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reportmg perlod Actual
results could differ from those estimates, - : , : .

H Cash And Inve:stmen‘t‘s:v

Investments primarily consist of short-term U.S. government treasury and agency securities
which are carried at cost or amortized cost because of their short-term maturities. Certain
investments of the Bond Reserve Fund in the enterprise fund and equity investments of the

‘permanent trust fund are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices.

Missouri state statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations.of: the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. Government agencies; the State of Missouri; and local governments inMissouri with:

" populations greater than 400,000. Deposits in financial institutions must be collateralized -

by securities pledged to the City by these same institutions or covered by FDIC insurance.
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Cash deposits with financial institutions amounted to $35,173,230. The bank balance was
$36,021,511, which, at the balance sheet date was-entirely insured or collateralized by
securities held by the City’s agent in the City’s.name.

The City’s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed at year end. Category 1includes investments that are insured or registered, or for
which the securities are held by.the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the

.. counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured.

and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its
trust department or agent, but not in the City’s name.

Category Fair

1 2 3 ' Value
Investments - U.S. Treasu‘ry S - ;
obligations $ — $ 2,019,760 $ — $ 2,019,760
Marketable securities = 1,128,079 - — 1,128,079
$ —  $3,147,839 $ — 3,147,839
Pooled investments: ] R o
Government money market funds ’ ' 1,099,465 ;
Deposits 35,173,230
Petty cash ' 10,325
Total deposits and investments $ 39,430,859

Property Tax

The City’s property tax is levied annually, onor before-September 1, based on the assessed

- valuation of property located in the City as of the previous Jariuary 1. Assessed valuations
‘are established by the St. Charles County Assessor. The City tax rate was levied at $.9000

per $100 of assessed valuation of which $.6400 is for géneéral revenue purposes ‘and $.2600
for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds. Taxes are billed
November 1, are due and collectible on December 31, and are delinquent and represent a
lien on related property on January 1 of the following year. Taxes are bllled collected and
remitted to the City by the St. Charles County Collector. ;
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4. ¢ Capltal Assets

e

- Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003

Balance - - s/ .. - 7 .Balance -
. October 1, . - - .* September 30,
' 2002 Additions Retiremeénts. . 2003
‘Government Activities:
S Capital assets, not being depreciated: - . B} - ) Lo .
Land . $11,429,729 $ 251,505 $ —  $11,681,234
Construction in process . 4,469,182 4782471 (4,469,182) 4782471
thalvcagitalxéssets, not being- . s ‘
depreciated . 15,898,911 5,033,976 (4,469,182) 16,463,705
Capltal assets, being depreclated . -
Structures and improvements 40,617,112 754,143 - (82,000)° : 41,289,255'
SMachmery and equipment 142,964,548 . 1,220,668 (304,678) 13,880,538
Furniture and fixtures - - -1,111,397 . 18,019 : (1,429) - - 1,127,987
Vehicles ) 4,542,730 3 438,2551 (318,167). 4,662,824
Infrastructure - — -8,398,227 ; = 8,398,227
Total capital assets being ) ‘ L .
depreciated . 59235787 10,829,318 (706,274) 69,358,831
‘Less accumulated depreciation for: = . : o )
Structures and impro'v.ements S . - 13,080,627 71,3597,325_ ‘ Ny — L7 14,627,952
Machinery and equipment ~ - 9,109,379 1,850,272 T (288,716) 10,670,935
Furniture and fixtures 871,788 107,151. 2 (1,230) : 977,709
- Vehicles: - 3,092,235 529,272 . " -(308,024) - B 3,313,483
Infrastructure — 182,059 . — 182,059
__Total accumulated depreciation 26,104,029 4,266,079 {597.970) 29,772,138
’I‘otai capital assets, being Lo : )
depreciated, net 33,131,758 6,563,239 (108,304) 39,586,693
Governmental activities capital : -
" assets,net $49,030,669 - $11597,215 $(4,577,486) ~  $56,050,398

The City has elected to phase in over part of the available transitional period, the retroactive
reporting of infrastructure capital assets. Infrastructire assets as of October 1, 2002
represent the construction in progress amounts for certain roads and relatéd sidewalks and
“street lights that were placed in service during 2003. All other infrastructure assets placed -
in service prior to October 1, 2002 will be reported in future financial statements in
accordance with the transitional provisions allowed for infrastructure assets in GASB 34.
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Balance - Balance -
QOctober 1, September 30,
2002 . Additions Retirements . 2003
Business-Type Activities:
Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer:
' Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights $ 1,274,998 $ — 3 — $ 1,274,998
Construction in progress — 70,307 — 70,307
Total capital assets not :
being depreciated 1,274,988 70,307 = 1,345,365
Capital assets, being depreciated: -
Structures and improvements o .21,388,561 469,821 — 21,858,382
Water lines 18,689,116 " 308,312 —_ 18,997,428
Sewer lines 17,201,621 211,075 — 17,412,696
Machinery and equipment 3,843,466 328,407 (124,039) 4,047,834
Other assets . 23,838 — - 23,838
Total capital assets being . ] . .
depreciated 61,146,602 1,317,615 (124,039) 62,340,178
Less accumulated depreciation for:
- Structures and improvements A 14,595,473 619,024 — 15,214,497
) Water Lines 5,415,362 398,120 — 5,813,482
- Sewer Lines . 5,258,118 343,042 — 5,601,160
Machinery and equipment 2,835,446 ° 346,492 (123,820) 3,058,118
Other Assets 14,544 586 — 15,130
Total accumulated depreciation 28,118,943 1,707,264 (123,820) 29,702,387
Total capital assets being .- )
-_depreciated, net 33,027,659 (389,649) (219) 32,637,791
,Waterworks/sanitz}ry sewer . ,
capital assets, net ' 34,302,657 (319,342) (219) 33,983,096
Solid Waste: '
Capital assets; not being depreciated:
Land and land rights — — — —
Construction in progress — — — —
_Total capital assets not
being depreciated — — — —
ﬂtCapitaI assets, being depreciated:
~ Structures and improvements 227,407 — — 227,407
Machinery and equipment 2,261,437 141,217 (49,340) 2,353,314
" Total capital assets being :
depreciated 2,488,844 - 141L2717 (49,340) 2,580,721
Less accumulated depreciation for: ;
Structures and improvements 93,825 9,848 — 103,673
Machinery and equipment 1,639,045 276,226 {48,814) 1,766,457
- Total accumulated depreciation 1,632,870 286,074 (48,814) 1,870,130
Total capital assets being .
depreciated, net 855,974 (144,857) (526) 710,591
Solid waste capital assets, net 855,974 (144,857) (526) 710,591
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. Balance - Balance -
' October 1, i Sre_ptember 30,
2002 Additions Retirements 2003
Business-Type Activities (Continued):
-Public Improvement Corporation: A
- Capital assets, not being depreciated: -
Land and land rights 3 — $ — — $ - —
Construction in progress — — — —
Total capital assets not
being depreciated — — — —
Capital ‘assets, being depreciated: ) i B
- Structures and improvements " 5,019,166 392,737 B 5,411,903
‘Machinery and equipment . - 2,636,360 1,535,272 (282,888) 3,888,744
“Furniture and fixtures . 206,127 33,903 v = 240,030
Total capital assets being . N
“depreciated ) 7,861,653 . 1,961,912 (282,888) 9,540,677
Less accumulated depreciétion for:
| Structures and improvemerits 531,087 - 182,778 — 713,865
Machinery and equipment 2,330,744 248,838 (279,674) 2,299,908
Furniture and’ fixturés _ 49,198 27,744 — 16,942
.Total accumulated depreciatiorf . 2,911,029 " 459,360 (279,674) 3,090,715
Total capital assets being . . )
depreciated, net 4,950,624 1,502,552 (3,214) 6,449,962‘
._-.% Public Improvement Corporation .
- capital assets, net 4,950,624 1,502,552 : (34214) 6,449,962
Cén'trgiili\da_terials Processing Facility:
Capital asséts, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights 538,672 — — 538,672
Construction in progress — — — —
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 538,672 — — 538,672
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 3,885,800 — — 3,885,800
Machinery and equipment 1,322,295 *120:645 (867) 1,442,073 .
Furniture, fixtures and other assets 73,692 — (21,000) 52,692
e Totat capital assets being -
depreciated 5,281,787 ©120,645 . (21867) " 5,380,565
- Less accunulated depreciatibn-,fdx;
Structures and improvements’ 855,278 155,403 - 1,010,681
Machinery and equigment . 1,277;803 " 21,002 - (849) 1,297,956 °
Furniture; fixtures and other assets 67,675 - iZéB (20,796) ) 50,177
Total accumulated depreciation 2,200,756 179,703 ° © (21,645) 2.358,814
"“Total capitai assefs Being
depreciated, net 3,081,031 (59,057) (222) 3,021 751
- _— : - .
Central Materials Processing Facility . T
capital assets, net - -$3,619,704° - $ (59,057) $ - (222) . $ 3,560,423
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Depreciation expense was chargéd to Afunctions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities: . 1
.$ 248,353

General Government
Administration 484,365
Public Safety 315,371
Municipal Court 1,211
Public Works 495
Engineering 75,419
Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 130,347
Health and Environmental o - 41,546
Parks & Recreation ) 1,733,656
Street Maintenance ‘and Repairs 69é,209
Community Relations : , 195,827 .
Community and' Arts S . 88,276
Street Improvements 214,066
Total depreciation expeﬁse - governmental-type .
activities ' ; - $ 4,221,141
AN
Business-type Activities:

" Waterworks $1,707,264 -
Solid Waste : - w1 286,074
PIC S : o 459,360 -
Central Materials Processing Facilities ‘ 179,703
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities . $ 2,632,401

Employees’ Retirement SySfem

- Plan Description -

The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System
(LAGERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for local government entities in Missouri.
LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. LAGERS was created and is governed by
statute, section RSMo. 70.600 - 70.755. As such, it is the system’s responsibility to
administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The
plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and it is tax exempt.

The Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to LAGERS, P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO

_ 65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334.
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No’tes To Budgetary Comparison Information (Continued) -

Fundlng Status N
The City’s full-time employees contrlbute 4% of their gross salary to the  pension plan. The

Cityis required by state statute to contrlbute at an actuarially determined rate; the current

rate is 10.9% (general) and 10.7% »(pohce) of annual covered payroll. The contribution

' requirements of plan members are ‘determined by the governing body of the political
" subd1v1s1on ‘The COI’ltI‘lbllthIl prov1s1ons of the pohtlcal subdivision are estabhshed by state
~ statute.

Annual Pensmn Cost

. For the 2003 Plan year the Clty s annual pensmn cost of $2 687,097 (employer and employee

contributions of. $1 976,073 and $711 024, respectlvely) was equal to the required and-actual -
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the February 29, 2001
and/or February 28, 2002 annual actuarial valuation us1ng the entry ‘age actuarial cost

-method. The actuarial assumptions 1nc1uded (a) a rate of return on the investment of

present and future assets of 7.5% per year, compounded annually, before retirement and.

. 4.0% per year, compounded annually, after retirement, (b) projected salary increases of: 4:0%
.. per. year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary
. .increases ranging from 0.0% to 4.2% per year, depending on.age, attributable to.

seniority/merit, (d) pre-retirement mortality based on the 1983 Group Annulty Mortality
table, and (e) post-retirement mertality based on the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality table
projected to 2000 set back one year for men and seven years for women. The actuarial value

* of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in

the market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded- actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of prOJected payroll on an open basis. The

.amortlzatlon period at February 28, 2003 was 13 years.

Three-Year Trend lnformatlon

. Fiscal _ Annual  Percentage Net

Year - Pension Of APC Pension
Ending Costs (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2001 $ 1,945,031 . - 100% $—
June 30, 2002 $ 2,553,737 100% —

June 30, 2003 $ 2,687,097 100% —
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule Of Funding Progress

: ® 7 (ba). . ((b-a)/c]
N ' {(a) ' EntryAge Unfunded ()  UALAsA
Aétuaz-jal ‘. Actuarial Actuarial' ) 'Accrixed ‘ (a/b) Annual Percentag;e'Of
( Valuation - Value Accru;ed Liability " Funded Covered Covered
Date Of Assets Liability (UAL) Ratio Payroll P;nyroll
February 28,1998  $ 11,708,155 $16 457,305 $ 4749150 90  $11,488884 41%
February 28,1999 14,454,223 18,719,947 4,265,724, 11 12647965 ‘34
" ‘February 29, 2000 18516,233  21,374977° 2858744 ' 87 14667535 19
February28,2001  22,914427 23,587,920 673,493~ 97 16405237 "4
February 28,2002 26,095,648 = 34,790,135 8694487 ~ 75 16869756 52
' Fe_bifuaryf28, 2003 28,371,455 ' ‘38,701,78_9‘ 10,330,294 . 13 17,609,354 59

’ NOTE The above assets and actuarial accrued hablhty do not include the assets and present value
‘of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve Fund. The
actuarial assumptions were changed in conjunctlon with the February 28, 2001 annual

a actuanal valuatlons . .
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- Notes To Budge}:afy Com-parison( Information (Continued)

6.

Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s long -term liabilities for the year ended
September 30, 2003, including the long-term debt obhgatlons of the Public Improvement

Corporatlon (PIC) (see Note 7):

P

. Govemmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds
Series 1997 Refundmg )
Series 1999 Refundmg

! Series 2000
* Series 2002

- Tax Increment" Revenue Notes:
Taxable Series 2001 . - .
Tax-exempt - Series 2001

. Accrued comgen_sé'ted absences -

* “Add: Unamortized premium, net

Less: Bond issue costs, net:-

Total G‘overhm_entai_ Actiyitiee

b

- Business-Type Activities:

Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds:
Series 1992 B.
Capital Appreciation Series 1999 -
Series 2002'Refunding ;
Capltal Apprec1atlon Senes 2003
: PIC Leasehold Revenue Bonds (Note 7 .
» Series. 1998
. Series; 2002
Accrued compensated absences .

Less: Unamortized discount, bond
issue costs and deferred
amount on refunding

Unaccreted capital .-
appreciation on bonds

Total Business-Type Activities

© $24970.108

Balance - E Balance -
October 1, September 30; -Current
2002 . Additions Retirements 2003 ~ Portion
"$ 4015000 $ — $ 705,000 $ 3,310,000 $ 760,000
14,720,000 -~ - 605,000 14,115,000 605,000
9,670,000 - 345,000 9,325,000 360,000
. 2,500,000 = — 2,500,000 ~ —-
5,400,000 - +23,000 — 5,423,000 - —
3,279,000 . 234,000, —_ 3,513,000 —
~.541,646 . 6814 — 548 460 —
$ 40,125,646 $263814  $1,655000 38,734,460  $ 1,725,000

© 252,934

.(205,609).

$ 38,781,785, .

$ 2,050,000 $ — $475,000  $1575,000 -$ 500,000
19,910,000 . . - —. ’ i = 9,910,000 - . —
4,110,000 — 765,000 3,345,000 890,000
o~ 12,970,000 -2 112,970,000 —
. 4,125000 . .— 240,000 . - 3,885,000 . 250,000
2,900,000 -~ . — 225,000 ¢ 2,675,000 230,000
174,709 24,351 — 199,060 —
$23,269,709 $12,994,351  $ 1,705,000 34,559,060 '$ 1,870,000

616,676

8,972,276
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Notes T'o Budgetary Comparison Informatien".( Contir}uéd) |
Debt Service Requirements To Maturity (Includlng Public Improvement

‘Corporation) :

The annual principal requirements to maturity of bonded debt outstanding as of
September 30, 2003 are as follows: : o

Governmental Activities . Business-Type Activities: - Total Debt
, . Public Improvement Service Requirements
Year Ending General Obligation Revenue Bonds Corporation To Maturity
- September 30, Principal Interest Principal ~Interest - Principal Interest  Principal Interest
2004 $ 1,725,000 $ 1,457,284 $ 1,390,000 §$ 180,025 § 480,000 § 287,338 . $ 3,595,000 $ 1,924,647
2005 1,795,000 1,381,737 7 1,445,000 - 121,172 500,000 271,202 3,740,000 1,774,111
2006 i ' 1,880,000 1,301,906 1,437,403 . 104,575 515,000 = 253,126 " 3,832,403 1,659,607 -
2007 " 1,965,000 1,216,253 - 1,175,218 363,977 545,000 233,500 3,685,218 1,813,730
2008 2,105,000 1,078,981 © 1,152,651 . 394,049 560,000 211,762 3.817,651 1,684,792
2009 — 2013 12,450,000 - 3,446,014 4,094,201 ' 2,725,797 2,115,000 738,836 18,659,201 6,910,647
2014 - 2018 4,705,000 1,320,467 3,692,090 3,107,910 1,625,000 310,290 10,022,090 4,738,667
2019 - 2023 2,625,000 166,305. 3,030,420 3,769,580 220,000 . 30,228 5,875,420 3,966,113

$ 29;250,000 - $ 11,368,947 $17,416,983 $ 10,767,085 $ 6,560,600 AI$ 2,336,282 $ 53,226,983 $ 24,472,314

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds are supported by a pledge of the City’s full faith and credit. These
bonds, which are reported in the government-wide statement of net assets, 'were issued to
finance various capital projects. $1,860,174 is available in the City’s Debt Service Funds to
repay general obligation bonds. The remainder of the general obligation bonds is to be
repaid from future property tax levies. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.40%
to 5.40% and mature through 2021. ’ .

Revenue Bonds (Excludlng Publlc Improvement Corporatlon)

All revenue bonds payable. are, recorded in the appropriate enterpnse funds since the

ordinances authorizing the bond issues require that the bonds be repaid from operations of

the respective enterprise fund. These bonds are payable solely from, and secured by, a

pledge of the net revenues to be derived from the operation of the Waterworks and Sewerage

System.: ‘The bond ordinances require the establishment of certain cash reserve accounts

which are described in Note 9. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 1.40% to
- 8.10% and mature through 2023.
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‘Notes To Budgetary Comparlson Informatlon ( Contlnued)

. Legal Debt Margln
( Under the statutes of the State of Mlssourl the 11m1t of bonded 1ndebtedness is 10% of the

most recent assessed valuatlon This does not include an-additional debt limit of 10%

. assessed valuatlon available for street improvements or waterworks and electrlc plants as
- prov1ded under the statutes of the State of Missouri. The computation i is as follows:

o Aissessed'yaluation—.,?;002 tax yea_r"" : o . $744,021,148}
" Débt limit - 10% of assessed valuation - . . ___$ 74,402,115

-Amount of debt applicabletodebt limit: . N e L
Total general obligation bonded debt - B L 29,250,000 |

Less: Amount available in debt service fund 1,860,174
- *Bond indebtedness apphcable to debt limit - I 27,389,826
Legal debt margin - : -$ 47,012,289 -

4’ Tax Increment Flnanmng (TIF) N otes Payable -

"..The tax inerement financing notes payable are payable- from payments in 11eu of taxes
£ ,collected by the Special Allocatlon spec1al revenue funds. - - ~

The TIF notes represent spec1a1 limited obligations of the Clty, payable solely from the
incremental sales taxes generated by the development project. The balance at September
30,2003 represents outstanding notes with no accrued interest. The annual debt service
repayments of the TIF notes are contingent upon the amounts of payments in lieu of taxes
collected by the special revenue fund. The notes bear 1nterest at rates ranging from 7 0% to

. 8.5% and mature December 1, 2012.

- Clty Of St: Peters, Mlssourl Public Improvement Corporatlon

On August 24, 1990, the Pubhc Improvement Corporatlon (PIC) was formed asa Mlssoun

_ not-for-profit corporation. The purpose of the PIC is to facilitate the acquisition and
- construction of certain capital 1mprovements and facilities: solely for the beneﬁt of the City of

St. Peters; MlSSOUI’l

Funding of such capital improvements and facilities has been provided through the issuance
of leasehiold revenue bonds. The revenue bonds do not constitute a legal debt-or liability for
the Cltv the State of Missouri, or for any political subdivision thereof and do not constitute
an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or
restriction. The issuance of the revenue bonds does not obligate the City tolevy anyform of
taxation, therefore, or to make any approprlatlon for thelr payment in any fiscal year. The

PIC has no taxing power.
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On June 1, 2002, the PIC issued $2,900,000 of Leasehold Revenue Bonds, Series 2002.
Proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to finance the acquisition and renovation of a
building for use primarily by the City’s construction management department and for the
City’s cable television operations, acquisition of solid waste collection vehicles, acquisition of
a communications system and acquisition of other personal property for municipal use.

- Simultaneously with the issuance of these 2002 Leasehold Revenue Bonds, the City entered

into a lease agreement dated June 1, 2002 whereby a portion of the property, facilities and
improvement acquired or constructed by the PIC have been leased to the City. The initial
lease was renewed on September 30, 2002 and subject to annual budget appropriations. The
lease will have successive one-year renewal options for a period of twenty years. At the end
of the twenty-year period, the assets will be inventoried and become property of the City.
Rental payments by the City are to be sufficient at all times to pay, when due, the principal,
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the 2002 Leasehold Revenue Bonds. For fiscal
year 2003, the city made lease payments totaling $335,338.

On July 1, 1998, the PIC issued $5,000,000 of Leasehold Revenue Bonds, Series 1998.
Proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to finance an expansion and renovation of the
police station, an expansion to the City’s senior citizens center, modifications to the skating
rink, acquisition of computer system hardware, and renovation of the City Hall.
Simultaneously with issuance of these 1998 Leasehold Revenue Bonds, the City entered into
a lease agreement dated July 1, 1998 whereby a portion of the property, facilities and
improvements acquired or constructed by the PIC have been leased to the City. The initial
lease was renewed on September 30, 1998 and subject to annual budget appropriations. The
lease will have successive one-year renewal options for a period of twenty years. At.the end
of the twenty-year period, the assets are intended to become the property of the City. Rental
payments by the City are to be sufficient.at all times to pay, when due, the principal,
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the 1998 Leasehold Revenue Bonds. For fiscal
year 2003, the city made lease payments totaling $431,400.

Prior Years’ Debt Defeasance

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable
trust funds. New debt had been issued and the proceeds were used to purchase U.S.

" government securities that were placed in trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings

from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is
considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability from the City’s financial
statements. As of September 30, 2003, the amount of prior years’ defeased debt outstanding,
but removed from the financial statements amounted to $2,715,000.
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9.

Enterprise Funds Reyenue'Bond Requi:reme'ntsf ,.

"Cash-and cash equivalents ’and'inyes'tments restricted'at September 30, 2003 are as follows:

"Revenué fund o $ 157,391 -
Operation and maintenance fund ‘ , T 490,911
1992B: (Taxable). Bond and Interest Fund . ... 510,958
Series 1992B (Taxable) Bond Reserve Fund . 574,556
"+ Series’ 1998 Leasehold Revenue Bond Reserve Fund 438,102
. Deprec1at10n Fund -~ " : S 7 - 225,000
" Interest Reserve Fund ST T e e T 500,000
IR ‘-'Contmgency Fund = " o - 1216,672
co ": " Series 2002 Revenue Refiinding Bond Reserve Fund ’ ' 4"15,33{5 o
"'~ Series 2002 Revenue Refunding Bond and Interest l T '
~ Fund » 930,186
Series 2002 Leasehold Revenue Bonds Reserve Fund ) 241,302, - .
I 4, 700 413" B

o The 1990 Leasehold Revenue Bond documents and the City Ordlnance No 1873 which’

authorized the issuance of the combined Waterworks and- Sewerage System refundlng
revenue bonds Series 1992B (Taxable) and 2002, prov1de for the restriction of operating

“revenues of the enterprise fund. after cuirent operating - expenses have been ‘met. The
-Ordinance also provides for additional restrictions’ of operatlng revenues. The followmg are

,descrlpt1ons of the. related reserve requ1rements

Reven_ue Fund _ B

Requirements - deposit of the gross earnings (excluding tap-on fees) of the Waterworks and
Sewer System as collected, to be disbursed to the following funds-as required.

N

Operatlon And Malntenance Fund

T Requlrements monthly credlt of a sum. sufﬁc1ent to pay the expenses for that month

1992B (Taxable) Bond And Interest Funds

Requirements - monthly credit of one-sixth (1/6) of th“‘e' interest due on the succeeding
interest payment date plus one-twelfth (1/12) of the.principal amount due the next
succeedmg November 1, 1f any, to be used only for the payment of prmc1pal and interest.

- 'Serles 1992B (Taxable) Bond Reserve Fund -

_’Requ1rements - 1n1t1al depos1t of $545 376 to be used only for payment of pnnc1pal and

_interest on the bonds in the event insufficient funds are available in the bond and interest

fund. In the event monies are drawn from the fund, the City will replenish the fund to
$545,376 by makmg 12 monthly deposits into the fund in the 12 months 1mmed1ately
succeeding the use. The Bond Reserve Fund may also be used to call the Series 1992B
(Taxable) bonds for redemption and payment prior to their maturity.
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Series 1998 Leasehold Revenue Bond Reserve Fund

Requirements - initial depos1t of $437,913 to be used for the payment of pr1nc1pal and
interest on the bonds in the event insufficient funds are available in the bond fund. In the.
event monies are drawn from this fund, the city will replenish the fund the full amount that
was withdrawn by making 12 monthly deposits into the fund in the 12 months immediately
succeeding the use.

Series 2002 Revenue Refundlng Bond Reserve Fund

Requlrements - initial deposit of $411,000 to be used only for payment of principal and
interest on the bonds in the event insufficient funds are available in the bond and interest
fund. In the event monies are drawn from the fund, the City will replenish the fund to
$411,000 by making 12 monthly deposits into the fund in the 12 months immediately
succeeding .the use. The Bond Reserve Fund may also be used to call the Series 2002
Revenue Refunding bonds for redemptmn and payment prior to their maturity.

Series 2002 Revenue Refunding Bond And Interest Fund' - -

Requirements - rnonthly credit of one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on the succeeding
interest payment date plus one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal amount due the next
Is‘ucceeding November 1,if ‘any, to be used only_for the payment of principal and interest.

Series 2002 Leasehold Revenue Bond Reserve Fund

Requlrements - 1n1t1a1 deposit of $239, 721 to be used for the payment of pr1nc1pa1 and

_interest on the bonds in the event insufficient funds are available in'the bond fund. In the
event monies are drawn from this fund, the city will replenish the fund the full amount that
was withdrawn by making 12 monthly deposits into the fund in the 12 months immediately
succeeding the use. :

Depreciation Fund

Requirements - initial transfer and credit of $225,000 to be used only for the payment of
principal and interest on the bonds in the event that insufficient funds are available in the
bond or bond reserve funds to pay for the costs of necessary replacements to the Waterworks
and Sewerage System. In the event monies are drawn from this fund, the City will replenish
the fund to $225,000 by making 24 equal’ monthly deposits into the fund in the 24 months
immediately succeedJng the use.

Interest Reserve Fund

Requirements - initial transfer and credit of $500,000 and thereafter such amounts as

appropriated by the Board of Alderman of the City from the Contingency Account, the

General Fund of the City, or other available funds of the City. Monies in the Interest
' Reserve Fund shall be held and used by the City to make up any deficiency in any of the

accounts or subaécounts in the Revenué Fund and may be withdrawn by the Clty at any

time and applied to its general governmental purposes if not required to satisfy the City’s
) rate covenant
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10.

Contlngency Fund

Requlrements amounts rémaining in the revenue fund after dlsbursement to other funds
" based on individual fund requirements shall be depos1ted in the Contingency Fund for the
purposes of paying the costs of improvements, extensions; or additions to the system retiring
bonds in advance of maturlty or for any lawful purpose of the City."

f

Rate Covenant T

Requlrements the Clty will ﬁx estabhsh maintain and collect such rates fees and charges
for the use and services furmshed by the Waterworks and Sewer System to prov1de revenues

‘in each fiscal year to pay for the operating costs of the system, the bond principal and

interest payments, - and any required deposits. Such rates should generate available
revenues (net revenues plus interest reserve fund monies) at least equal to 125%-of the

- principal and interest requirements on all bonds during the fiscal year and net revenues at

least equal to 100% of the principal and interest requlrements on all bonds durlng the fiscal
year. & .

The City met all related revenue bond reserve requirements.

Interfun_d Balanoes o -

Individaal fund 1nterfund recelvable and payable balances as of September 30 2003 are as
follows : s . : :
' - Inte_rfund ‘ Interfund

el T e ., L - Receivable - Payable
" Major- Governmental Funds I o o _ . :
General fund ' S  $455,674 R —
Transportatlon trust fund - coL . —_ - 11,616
’ Nonmajor Govemmental Funds: L o o
Recreatlon fund _' ) L T . So— » .38,22’(.
Commumty Development Block Grant fund - _ ( | — ; 74,547 ‘
Enterprlse Funds ) . I » ;
ﬁWaterworks/samtary sewer s A ‘ ) — . 90 192 . o
 Solid waste fund. L T 14,988 - -
. Public Improvement Corporatlon P e = 178 309 .
Central Materials Processing Facility - - o 47,795
IR h o ' $455674 ’$'455,674 .

The amounts due to or from 1nd1v1dual funds represent 1nterﬁJnd borrowmgs and arise in

the nnrmg] coyurse nf'hnmnnqq Tnfprﬁ1nd bhorrowings are necessarv due o the n ature and.

20222302 LU0 VL DSl AVT L AR APVI LNV Liine LATLTOOQL y MuT W vy na
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. timing of governmental receipts.: .

3
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Notes To Budgetary Comparison Information (Continued) =

11.

Interfund payables at September 30, 2003 include $38,227 in the Recreation Fund, $11,616
in the Transportation Fund, $12,954 in the Solid Waste Fund, $90,192 in the
Waterworks/Sanitary Sewer Funds, and $47,795 in the Central Materials Processing Facility
Fund for reimbursement to the General Fund for insurance expense. Receivables in the
General Fund reflect the interfund payables. :

An interfund payable of $178,309 exists in the Public Improvement Corporatioh Fund for
reimbursement to the General Fund for Police and City Hall renovatlons A receivable in

) the General Fund reflects the 1nterﬁ1nd payable

Fund overdraws of pooled cash account for $60,919 of mterfund payables and a receivable in

 the General Fund.

An interfund payable of $15,662 exists in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds for

reimbursement to the General Fund for CDBG administrative costs‘incurred during fiscal
year 2003. A receivable in the General Fund reflects the interfund payable.

J ointr Venture

In October 1985, the City of St. Peters, Missouri and the City of St. Charles, Missouri

~entered into a joint venture agreement to form the St. Peters - St. Charles Water Pipeline

Project (the Joint Venture). The purpose of the Joint Venture is to construct and operate a
water pipeline and appurtenant facilities from the Howard Bend Treatment Plant, owned
and operated by the City of St. Louis, Missouri, to the separate facilities of the municipalities
of St. Peters, Missouri and St. Charles, Missouri (the Owners), in order to adequately supply
water by the plpelme to the citizens and businesses of the Tmmcl pau ties.

The Joint Venture is owned by the City of St. Peters, Missouri (31.8%) and the City of St.
Charles, Missouri (68.2%). In accordance with the Joint Venture agreement the City of St.
Peters, Missouri is responsible for managing : and accounting for the daily operations of the
Joint Venture, except where concurrence of both cities is required. The Joint Venture
receives all of its operating revenue from the water it sells to the Owners. The Owners
financed the cost of construction of the pipeline and appurtenant facilities and, therefore,
depreciation is excluded from the charges to the Owners. The cumulative investment in the
Joint Venture by the City of St. Peters, Missouri through September 30, 2003 includes its
proportionate share of water pipeline construction costs and an initial contribution to a
water pipeline maintenance fund. Under terms of the Joint Venture agreement, additional
contributions to maintain the water pipeline maintenance fund at an agreed-upon base
amount may be required. The current base amount is $500,000 Wthh may be 1ncreased toa

‘maximum of $1 000,000 if maintenance costs S0 Justlfy

During 2003, the City of St. Peters Missouri purchased water from the Joint Venture and
paid related pumping charges totaling $323,954. These costs are included as operating
expenses of the City’s waterworks/sanitary sewer enterprise fund. -
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" Notes To Budgetary C'omparison Information (Continued)

Condensed summary of financial information for the Joint Venture as of and for its fiscal
year ended September 30, 2003 is as follows: :

Assets S $ 7,467,245
Liabilities - - $ 434,053
Partnership.capital: _ A . .
" St. Peters . ‘ 2,903,699
St.'Charles A -6,227,431
Retained deficit: = o
St. Peters : (667,144)
‘St. Charles (1,430,794)
$ 7,467,245
Operating revenue $ 1,279,230
Operating expenses 1,438,920
Nonoperating revenue .~ - . .12998
Net Loss R _$ (146,692) '

. The joint venture issues a financial statement which may be obtained by writing to the
St. Peters - St. Charles Water Pipeline Project, One St. Peters Centre Boulevard, St. Peters,

'M1ssour1 63376.

Insurance_ Programs

The Clty became self-msured with respect to workers compensatlon general hab1llty and
property- and casualty insurance effectlve July 1, 1998 and medical insurance effective

January. 1, 1998. Unemployment compensat1on became effective in 1997. The estimated

.llablhty for payment ofincurred (both reported and unreported) but unpald clalms relating

to these matters is recorded in the general fund.,

The City obtains periodic funding information from the claims-servicing company managing

‘the self-insurance programs and adjusts the charges to the various funds .as.required to
maintain the appropriate level of estimated claims liabilities.. The City maintains excess

liability coverages for workers’ compensatlon general liability, property and casualty and
medical costs: Settled.claims did not exceed commercial coverages for each of the past’ three

fiscal years.

At September 30, 2003 the City’s total estimated liability for payment of incurred (both
reported and unreported) but unpaid claims for workers’ compensation, property,
unemployment and medical costs was $742 966.
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Notes To Budgetéry Comparison Information ( Contl_l‘nued)

13.

Changes in the self-insured claims liabilities at September 30, 2003 and 2002 were as

follows:
Workers’
Compensation
General Unemployment Medical Total
Balance - September 30, 2001 $ 357,602 $ 24,651 $ 182,757 $565,010
Add: Current Year Claims
And Changes In Estimate 383,594 — 2,107,546 2,491,140
Less: Claim payments 292,602 — 2,177,416 2,470,018
Balance - September 30, 2002 448,594 24,651 112887 © 586,132
Add: Current Year Claims
And Changes In Estimate 520,036 — 2,429,397 2,949,433
Less: Claim Pg_yments 383,594 — 2,409,005 2,792,599
Balance - September 30, 2003 . $ 585,036 $ 24651 $ 133,279 .$ 742,966

Postretirement Health Care Benefits

In accordance with City statutes, the City provides postretirement health care benefits to
eligible employees who retire from the City, while a subscriber or participant, who elect to
receive benefits and has more than five (5) years of service prior to the date of retirement,
and who has elected to continue coverage under the plan, together with the spouse of such
retired employee. At September 30, 2003, the City provided this benefit to fourteen retirees.
The City provides a contribution on behalf of the retired employee and spouse for health and
dental insurance premiums based upon years of service

Upon the retired employee participant's attainment of age sixty-five (65), coverage for such

participant and his spouse shall only be supplemental to Medicare Parts A and B, regardless
of whether the participant enrolls for Medicare Parts A and’ B; '

During fiscal year 2003, the cost of postretirement benefits, net of retlree contributions,

totaled approximately $81 200.
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14.

Contingencies

Litigation

A lawsuit captioned st. Charles County, Missouri vs. City of St. Peters, Missouri was filed in
the Circuit Court of St.Charles County in August 2000. The suit relates to the
constitutionality of the state tax increment financing (TIF) statute that allows a portlon of
tax revenue collected from businesses in a TIF district to pay off bonds used to acquire land
and- develop business sites in blighted areas. The suit was subsequently voluntarily -
dismissed by the County and on October 4, 2001 the County filed a new lawsuit relating
primarily to the validity of Tax Increment Flnancmg for the St. Peters Centre
Redevelopment Area. The County is requesting among other things, invalidation of the TIF
District and relmbursement of the County taxes allocated to the tax increment fund.

The City filed a motions for summary judgment on all claims in June 2002; the Plaintiffs
filed motions for summary judgment on all claims. In addition to the City’s defense to the
suit, the Attorney General’s office intervened to.defend Counts VII and.VIII of the Petition,
which seek to invalidate, on constitutional grounds, portions of Missouri’s Real Property Tax

A Increment Allocation Act (“TIF ACT”). Following oral arguments on the City’s motions for

summary judgment, an order was entered in on May 1, 2003 in favor of the City on all
counts. Plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal on May 2,2003 and the Clty filed a notice of cross
appeal in J uly 2003. , .

The case has the potential of adversely affecting the validity of all of the City’s pending TIFs,
as well as those ori a state-wide basis, if the TIF act itself is declared unconstitutional on any
grounds, and therefore, may affect the validity of TIF bonds issued pursuant to various TIFs.
_Given the complexity of the matters raised in the petition, Counsel of the City is unable at

* this time to determine the likelihood of any outcome, or the financial impact on the City.

-The City is ‘a defendant in a number of other-lawsuits pertaining to matters which are

incidental to performing routine governmental and other functions.- Based on the current
status of all of these legal proceedlngs it is the opinion of management that they w111 not
have a material effect on the City’s financial position. :

Federal Grants

Under the terms. of Federal gTants periodic audits are requ1red and certain costs may be .
questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants Such

"audits. could lead to reimbursements to the grantor agencies. It is the opinion of

managernent that such reimbursements, if any, will not have a matenal effect on the City’s -
ﬁnanc1al position. ‘
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON INFORMATION
BUDGET BASIS - GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

. Variance
Budgeted Amounts With Final
Revised " Budget -
Original Final : i Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues ) .
Sales tax $ 11,000,000 $ . 10,500,000 $ 10,510,456 $ 10456
Property tax 4,978,610 5,116,610 5,129,781 13,171
Utility franchise tax’ 2,483,000 2,663,000 2,690,671 27,671
Cigarette tax © 210,000 201,000 202,503 1,503
Licenses and perinits 815,500 879,000 844,571 (34,429)
Interest 110,000 110,000 102,752 (7,248)
Intergovernmental 2,845,500 T 3,199,500 © 3,185,583 (13,917
Fines and forfeitures 1,434,000° 1,204,000 1,353,080 .149,080
Charges for services 299,460 . ' 308,060 283,059 (25,001)
Miscellaneous 185,900 1,105,400 . 1,178,071 72,671
Total Revenues 24,361,970 25.286,570 25,480,527 193,957
Expenditures
General government 1,024,865 936,765 851,831 84,934
Administration 5,450,045 5,208,465 4,827,665 380,800
Police 8,592,452 .8,5656,162 .8,251,348 304,814
Municipal court 279,863 304,173 : 293,840 10,333
Public works 2,365,229 2,351,449 2,337,996 13,453
Engineering 2,085,299 2,089,299 1,912,220 177,079
Maintenance 792,895 788,895 750,379 38,516
Health - 559,580 . 548,580 525,182 23,398
Parks and recreation 3,853,540 3,757,440 3,541,049 216,391
Community relations 875,921 858,921 - 782,396 - 76,525
Community and arts 270,455 271,705 278,508 (6,803)
Total Expenditures 26,150,144 25,671,854 24,352,414 1,319,440
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,788,174) . (385,284) 1,128,113 1,513,397
Other Financing Sources (Uses) . .
Transfers in (230,0000 ' (230,000) (230,000) —
Revenues And Other Financing Sources Over . .
(Under) Expenditures And Other Financing Uses (2,018,174) (615,284) 898,113 1,513,397
Fund Balances
Budget basis:
Unreserved:
Beginning of year 4,422,290 4,422,290 4,422,290 —
Transfer from (to) reserved (72,101) (1,167,101) (1,327,787) (160,686)
End of year 2,332,015 2,639,905 3,992,616 1,352,711
Reserved:
Beginning of year 1,865,023 1,865,023 1,865,023 —
Transfer from (to) unreserved 72,101 1,167,101 1,327,787 160,686
End of year 1,937,124 3,032,124 3,192,810 160,686
Budget basis, end of year 4,269,139 $ 5672029 7,185426 _ _ $ 1513397
. Encumbrances, end of year o 431,094 —
Property tax - deferred revenue, end of year (132,119)
$ 7.484.401

GAAP basis, end of year
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

Notes To Budgetary Comparison Information (Continued)

The budgets for the general fund, the special revenue funds, and debt service funds are
adopted on a basis which is consistent with accounting principles (GAAP) generally accepted
in the United States of America, except for the following:

® For GAAP purposes, expenditures are recognized as in¢urred, whereas the City’s budget
basis recognizes encumbrances outstanding at year-end as expenditures of the current .
period. Accordingly, expenditures on a budget basis for the general fund are less than
expenditures in the fund financial statements by $229,067 and greater than
expenditures in the fund ﬁnanc1a1 statements by $3,483,041 for the transportation trust.
fund.

® Property tax revenue is recognized to the extent it is collected within the current perlod

or expected to be collected within 60 days following the end of the fiscal period on a

GAAP basis. Property tax revenue not received at year-end is recorded as deferred -

revenue. Property tax revenue is recognized on a budget basis at the point in time that

the tax is levied. Accordingly, property tax revenues in the budgetary comparisons |

- (budget basis).for the general fund is greater than the corresponding revenues in the

fund financial statements by $20,543. The Debt Service Fund’s property tax revenues on’

a budget basis were $8,314 greater than the corresponding revenues in the fund
financial statéments.

¢
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Other Supplementary Information -

Combining And Individual Fund
Financial Statements And Schedu_les




Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Drug Enforcement Agency Fund - Used to account for Federal grant proceeds
and other revenues restricted for drug-related law enforcement purposes.

Recreation Fund - Used to account for revenues restricted for recreation purposes.

Special Allocation Fund - City Centre - Used to account for revenues generated by the
City Centre TIF district for the payment of debt service arid other TIF related expenditures.

Special Allocation Fund - Old Town - Used to account for revenues generated
C by the Old Town Levy TIF district. :

Special Allocation Fund - Lakeside Redevelopment Fund - Used to account for revenues generated by the

Lakeside Redevelopment TIF district for the payment of debt service and other TIF related expenditures.

Community Development Block Grant Fund - Used to account for federal grant proceeds that

provides assistance to low and moderate income persons.

Local Parks And Stormwater Fund - Used to account for one-tenth sales tax revenue
and grant proceeds to be used for park and stormwater projects.

2004 Olympic Diving Fund - Used to account for revenues and expenses related to the
2004 Olympic Diving Festival.

Natatorium Foundation Fund - Used to account for contributions received from the community
to fund improvements to the St. Peters Rec-Plex facility.




_CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

| COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30 2003

Combined
.Nonmajor Capital Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue Projécts Governmental
Funds Fund Funds
Assets L ‘ '
. Cash and cash eqmvalents - held by trustee. C. $ 2,044,887 $ — $ . 2,044,887
Cash and cash equivalents. - unrestricted o 4,201,219 3,272,163 . 7,473,382
Receivables; net of allowances . . ’ h
Taxes - ST " 303,498 — © 303,498
Inten;governmental . . 88,728 — . 88,728
.:Accrued interest I - 13,093 — *-13,093
_Other ‘ , s 159,993 — 159,993
_ -Long-term receivables L 306,103 — ~ 306,103
_.Inventory/prepaids . ] . - ’ . 14,146 — 14,146
' Total Assets. . $ 7,131,667 $ 3,272,163 ~ $ 10,403,830
" Liabilities And Fund Balances
Liabilities : . X
Accounts payable . $ 249,749 $ 127,076 . - $ ‘376,825
Accrued liabilities - : . 89,412 93 89,505
Depoééts}guarantee bonds - . ) 89,819 — 89,819
Due to other funds R D 112,774 — 112,774
Deferred revenue = .- L 117,061 — 117,061
Other liabilities Lol 367 — © 367
* Total Liabilities - e ) 659,182 127,169 786,351
. Fund Balances.. - , . - -
" Reserved for encumbrances I o - 919;02;1 — 91é,024
Reserved for capltal 1mprovements ’ 147,457 — 4. 147,457
- Reserved for inventory/prefiaids o . . 14,146 — 14,146
» Reserved for long-term loans - B 306,103 _ /306,103
" ‘Reserved for medical insurance . o 29,100 — 29,100
Reserved for thé Natatorium Foundation : ) ’ ‘ 2,05~6,$42' — 2 056 942
Unreserved - undesignated . . 2,999,713 - 3,144,994 +°6,144,707
Total Fund Balances - ’ . - 6,472,485 0 3,144,994 - 9,617,479
Total Liabilities And Fund Balances $ 7,131,667 $ 3,272,163

$ 10,403,830
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. CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

Combineii

Nonmajor ~Capital =~ Total Nonmajor
Special Projects ~ Govérnmental
] Revenue Funds Fund ' Funds
- Revenues
Sales tax $ 2,987,663 $ — ©$ 2,987,663
Property tax 1,435,396 — ! 1,435,396
Utility franchise tax 2,288 — ' 9,288
Interest 470,758 50,804 "+ 521,562
Intergovernmental ) 281,074 — .281,074
Charges for services 3,277,685 — 3,271,685
Miscellaneous 541,697 — " 541,697
Total Revenues 8,996,561 . 50,804 9,047,365
Expenditures p
General government 827,654 — 827,554
Administration 532,873 . — 532,873
. Public works 511,530 — 511,530
Parks and recreation 4,143,833 — 4,143,833
Capital outlay 261,746 1,120,408 - 1,382,154
Debt service 2,166,585, i — 2,166,585
Total Expenditures 8,444,121 01,120,408 . " 9,564,629
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 552,440 (1,069,604) T (517,164)
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 230,000 — - 230,000
" Proceeds from general long-term debt 257,000 — 257,000
Total Other Financing Sources 487,000 — 487,000
Revenues And Other Financing . . . -
Sources Over (Under) Egpenditures ~ 1,039,440 (1,069,604) i (30,164)
Fund Balances . . o
‘Beginning of year 5,433,045 4,214,598 9,647,643
End of year $ 6,472485 - $ 3,144,994 $ 9,617,479

>
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CITY OF ST PETERS MISSOURI

et e .
‘~ CON[BINING BALAN CE SI'IEET NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
September 30, 2003
Community Local Parks 2004
Dru;g Special Allocation F‘unds Development And Ql'ympjc_ . ‘Natatorium
] L L Enforcemeéiit” -Recreation . ) Cxﬂ;y o1d Lakeside ' o 'Blrock Stprmwater ' Diving Foundation o
S o Agency Fund Fiind " Centre ““Town Redevelopment = Grant Fund . ‘Fund " Fund Fund ! Total
Assets a . ; L B ’ N . o L
Cash and cash equivalents - held by trustee $ — $ — % - § - $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 2,044,887 $ 2,044,887
Cash and cdsh equxvalents - unrestricted 122,126 1,116,947 1,196,421 985,139 35,167 — 720,499 24,920 - 4,201,219
. Receivables, net of allowances . : e T, T T 4 . Do
Texes ‘ , — — 200,749 — R - 102,749 — — 303,498
. Intergovernmental‘ : : — i - R — 88,728 ‘ — — .= 88, 728
Accrued Interest . . - i, - 1,038 - = — R — — 12,055 113,093
Other . — ~27,099 — 6,036 — R 110,483 16,375 — ..159,993
Long-term receivables : _ R — — — 306,1'0'3 — — _— 306:103
_Inventory/prepaids . — - 14,146 - — ¢ — — } — — — 14,146
Total Assets . $ 122,126 § 1,159,230 §$ 1,397,170 § 991,175 $ 35,167 § 394,831 ™$ 933,731 $ 41,295  § 2,066,042  § 7,131,667
Llablhties And Fund Balancos LM -
Llabxhtles ) . . . )
Accounts payable ) $ — $. 91,350 $ — %, - $ 11,830 $.. 14,002 $ 129,936 $ 2541 - $ — $ 249,749
" Acérued liabilities . , o T 89,323 S L - 89 i _ - 89,412
. Deposits/guarantee bonds ~ ' . — ’ SQ,Blé — — — — — — — 89,8'1_9‘
. Due to other funds — 38,227 — — — 74,547 - — - 112,774
Deferred revenue : Co — 117,061 — — — - — — — 117,061
Other ligbilities . — 367 — = C— o — - — © 387
Total Liabilities . ' ] _ 426,147, T — 11.830 88,728 129,936 2,541 — 659,182
Fund Balances ) , .
Reserved for encumbrances ' - 9,058 275,000 68,891 - 83,366 482,709 - — 919,024
Reserved for capital improvéments L - . 127,457 — L —_ . = — - 20,000 — — " 147,457
Reserved for inventory/prepaids oL 14,146 — — — — = - — 14,146
Reserved for long-term loans W el — - — 306,103 " ~ - - 306,103
, Reserved for medical insurance — 29,100 — [ — ' —_ — —_ —_ 29,100
Reserved for.natatorium foundation ' = — — — S— — . — — 2,056,942 2,056,942
Unreservéd - undesignated . ° 122,126 . 553,322 1,122,170 922,284 23,337 (83,366) 301,086 38,754 : — 2,999713
. Total Fund Balances 122,126 733,083 1,397,170 . 991,175 23,337 306,103 803,795 38,754 2,056,942 6,472,485
Total Liabilities And Fund Balances - '$ 122,026 $ 1,159,230° $ 1397,170 $ 991175 .- . § 35167. 8§, 304831 $_J933 731 ©. $ 41295  § 2,056,942 . $ 7,131,667

’n
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

COIVIBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CI-IANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Year Ended- September 30, 2003

‘ . Community Local Parks 2004
Drug Special Allocation Funds Development And Olympic " Natatorium
Enforcement Recreation City old Lakeside Block Stormwate_rh Diving Foundation
Agency Fund Centre Town Redevelopment Grant Fund Fund Fund Fund . Total
Revenues ' . : ’
Sales tax : o $ — % — $1,734,209 $ 209,756 $. 7,123 $ —  $1,03575 § - % —  $ 2,987,663
Property tax _ — 1,276,188 134,631 24,577 —_ — _ ’ — 1,435,396
Utility franchise tax , - - - 2,288 — — -~ — — - 2,288
Interest ' 1,569 9,057 19,966 10,722° 479, — 10,530 11 418,424° 470,758
Intergoverﬁmental —-— — — — - 173,260 107,814 — — 281,074
Charges for services — 3,185,333 — —_ — 34,102 — 58,250 — 3,277,685
Miscellaneous ' — 379,042 — — — 154,448 - 4,465 2,245 1,497 541,697
_Total Revenues 1,569 3,573,432 3,032,651 355,109 32,179 361,810 1,159,384 60;506 419,921 8,996,561
Expenditures .

. General government — — 676,599 86,989 3,884 60,082 — —_ —_ 827,554
Administration - | - — R o= - — —_ - 532,873 532,873 -
Public works , - L = - — — —_ 511,530 - - © 511,580
‘Parks and recreation ' — 3,538,616 - - - R 583,465 21,752 — 4,143,833
Capital outlay — — 257,000 — — 4,746 — — —_ 261,746
Debt service . — — 2,141,685 . — 25,000 — — — — 2,166,585

Total Expenditures — 3,638,616 3,075,184 86,989 28,884 64,828 1,094,995 21,752 532,873 8,444,121
Revenues Over (Under) Expendiﬂtures 1,569 34,816 (42,533) 268,120 3,295 296,982 64,389 8,754 ' (112,952) 552,440
Other Financing Sources

Transfers in —_ 230,000 - — — — — - — 230,000
Proceeds from general long-term debt . — — 257,000 o— — — —_ e — 257,000
Total Other Fihancing Sources — 230,000 257,000 — — — — — — 487,000
Revenues And Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures 1,569 264,816 214467 268,120 3,295 296,982 64,389 38,754 (112,952) 1,039,440
Fund Balances
Beginning of year 120,557 468,267 1,182,708 . 723,065 20,042 9,121 739,406 — 2,169,894 5,433,045
End of year $ 122,126 § 733,083 $1,397,170° § 991,175 § 23337 § 306103 $ 803,795  § 38,754  $ 2056942  $ 6,472,485

&
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI B

A SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BUDGET BASIS - BUDGETED NONMAJ OR GOVERNN[ENTAL FUNDS
Page 1 Of3 /
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

. . : o .- ' " Drug Enforcement Agency. Fund ' e Recreation Fuid

- ] g o — Revised .. | VananceWTE— ~. . Revised - . -~ - Vanance With
o - . et Flnal - ' . © * Pinal Budget - © . Final . . ‘ - " Final Budget-
’ Budget E Actual . . Positive (Negative) . Budget | - Actual' . Positive (Negative)
Reveniues * "~ . .7 o, - . . " - : X .
Interest - - i .o - ; o : $ — . $- 1,569 $ 1,569 $ 15,000 $ 9,057 - $ - (5943)
Chargés_fofservicesl : —- ’ == _ R 3,236,100 | ¢ 3,185,333 . Lo - (50,76T).
Miscellaneous. . — L R ST o — 375,000 .. 379,042 L 4,042
“Total Reveniues : ) R ‘ T . 1569 .. ) 1,569 3,626,100 T 3573,432 ' (52,668)
Expenditures . oo < o ' P
Administration ’ — — — —_ — _
Police, . - ' , ‘ 10,000 " o= 10,000 - - —
Parks and recréation , . g . o ‘ - — 3,730,176, 3,490,481 239,695
Total Expenditures » , N 10,000 . — — 10,000 ~ 3,730,176 3,490,481 239,695
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures o . ... --(10000)- - - 1569 - , 11,569 . . (104,076) | 82,951 187,027
Other Financing Seﬁrces(usna’s) A o ) :
Transfers in . . ' — —_ - — 230,000 230,000 : -
_ Transfersout . . - = . - " "(11,000) — 11,000
" Total Other Financing Sources(uses . ) i . ] 219,000 230,000 11,000
Révenues And Other Financing . o ) . . . . . . c - c . o O
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures ‘ T o © 0 ao000) 1,569 - Lo 11,569, S 114924 77 312,951 198,027
Fund Balances
Budget basis:
Unreserved: ‘ . :
Beginning of year : ! l 120,557 120,557 ’ - . 247,248 247,248 —
Transfers from reserved ) . ' o . —_— . . — 11,000 : 1,269 . (3,731
End'of year ’ ) ) . 110,657 - B 122,126 i 11,569 L. 373,172 567,468 s 194,296
Reéserved: ’ B ’ : i . i j R
. Beginning of year . ' o - . ~ - s— 163,826 T - 163,826 s . o
Transfers to unreserved . o — - o — " (11,000) . (7,269) Lo 3,731
End of year - — — — - , — 152,826 156,557 i 3,731
Budget basis, end of year : $ 110,557 ‘122,126 $ 11,569 $. 525,998 724,025 $ 198,027
Market value adjustment’ . - ’ - .. . . R ' .o . ' . - )
Encumbrances, end of year . cn ‘ . o — . . “ s 9,058
GAAP basis, end of year - , o ‘ o § 122126 . , PRI $ 733,083
) e : o : o : " (Continited)
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

'»CHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET BASIS - BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNN[ENTAL FUNDS

Page 2 Of 3 60}
For The Year Ended September 30 2092/ 2
N . . Special Allocation Fund -
Special Allocation Fund - City Centre Special Allocation Fund - Old Town Lakeside Redevelopment
. Revised Variance With Revised Variance With Revised Variance With
Final S "Final Budget - Final - - Final Budget - * - Final Final Budget -
Budget _ Actual _ Positive (Negative) . . . -Budget Actual Positive (Negative) " ‘Budget Actual - Positive (Negative)
Revenues . ) .
Sales tax $ 1,711,600 $ 1,734,209 § 22,609 $ 226,500 $ 209,756 $ (16,744) $ 4,175 $ 7,123 $ 2,948
Property tax 1,192,100 1,276,188 84,088 134,600 134,631 31 21,925 24,577 2,652
Utility franchise tax —_ 2,288 2,288 — — — — —_ —
- Interest - 10,000 19,966 9,966 VZ,AOOO - 10,722 8,722 — 479 . 479
Total Revenues 2,913,700 3,032,651 118,951 363,100 355,109 (7,991 26,100 32,179 e N 6,079
"Expenditures .
General government 675,733 676,599 (866) 94,089 86,989 7,100 6,366 3,884 2,482
- Public works 275,000 275,000 — 200,000 68,891 131,109 - L - —
Debt service 2,144,341 2,141,585 2,756 — —_— — 25,000 25,000 . —_
Total Expenditures 3,095,074 3,093,184 1,890 294,089 155,880 138,209 31,366 28,884 2,482
_Revenues Over (Under) Empendltures (181,374) (60,533) . 120,841 - - 69,011 199,229 130,218 (5,266) ", 3,205 8,561
Fund Balances.
Budget basis:
Unreserved: : -
Beginning of year 1,182,703 1,182,703 = 723,055 723,055 —_ 20,042 . 20,042 - =
Transfers to reserved (992,900)  (1,000,038) "~ {7,138) ) - — — — — = C—
" End of year - 8,429 122,132 113,703 792,066 922,284 130,218 14,776 23,337 8,561
~ Reserved:
. ‘Beginning of year ) — — — — — — - — —
Transfers from unreserved 992,900 1,000,038 7,138 — — — — — —
End ofvear 992.900 1L0Q0,038 7,138 . — —- — — — . K i
Budget basis, end of year $ 1,001,329 $ 1,122,170 $ 120,841 $ 792,068 922,984 .. $ 1302187 $ 14,776 23,337 © g 8561
Encumbrances, end of year 275,000 68,891. . : D - — T T
GAARP basis, end of year $ 1,397,170 $ 991,175 $ 23,337

1
-
<

(Continued)
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L CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

N 4 S(‘HEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - .
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BUDGET BASIS - BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNN[ENTAL FUNDS

| | . - Page30f3 {
S : . - For The Year Ended September 30, 2002
‘ Community Development ’ Local Parks And Storm
Block Grant Fund L " Water. Fund 2004 Olymplc Dwmg Fund
Revised . . L Variance With Revised R Variance With: _Revised Variance With
. Final "'+ » < Final Budget - Final =~ = """ Final Budget - Final ‘Final Budget -
. Budget Actual Positive (Negative) Budget .. Actual . Pgsitive (Negative) Budget Actual Positive (Negative) -
Revenues i B o o N } i ] - - i " ‘
Sales tax ’ $ e "$ — 1,050,000 $1,036,575 $' (13,425) $ — % — $ -
Interest . —_ e — 1,500 10,530 9,030 —_ 11 1
Intergovernmeéntal . 514,779 256,626 (258,153) 100,000 177,427 77,427 — - —
Charges for services ? — . 34,102 . 34,102 — - — 19,000 58,250 " 39,250
Miscellaneous . — — — ) — 4,465 4,465 1,000 2,245 1,245
Total Revenues 514,779 290,728 : (224,051), 1,151,500 1,228,997 77,497 20,000 60,506 40,506
Expenditures ) - ‘ L “ B :
“General government 423,900 211,738 ' ) " 212,162 — — . L o=— — — —
Public works 100,000 - 88,111 11,889 560,000 511,217 . 48,783 C—_ — L=
Parks and récreation — — T — 825,000 © 775,410 49,590 31,000 " 21,752 © 9,248 ~
- Street construction _ . — —_ ' - —_ — e — — S a—
Total Expenditures ) 523,900 299,849 224,051 1,385,000 1,286,627 . 98,373 31,000 21,752 9,248
Revenues Over (Under) Ex,pe‘nditures ©(9,121) (9,121) v = (233,500) (57,630) 176,870 (11,000 38,754 L49,]7?4
Other Financing Sources ) : ' .
Operating transfers in - — . —_ — — — 11,000 — (11,000)
Reveniies And Other Financing ' ) . .
Sources Over Expenditures . (9,121) (9,121) ) — (233,500) " "(57,630) 175,870 — 38,754 38,754
Fund Balances , :
Budget basis: :
Unreserved: _ . g i ) .
Beginning of year 9,121 9,121 ” . — 248,329 248,32‘9 ) — —_ — T—=
Transfers from reserved —, — - L= _ 180,000 180,000 — — — —
End of year , — — . , C - 194,829 . 370,699 175,870 — 38,754 38,754
Reserved: ' N ) t : E
Beginning of year - _ S 200,000 ° 200,000~ . : — — - —
Transfers to unreserved = L— Y — (180,000) -(180,000) - —_ — — —
End of year — R T = 20,000 20,000 = — — . —
Biidget basis, end of year $ — $ = X — - § 214,829 $ 390,699 $ 175,870 - $ — § 38754 -$ 38,754
Budget basis grant incoie ’ (83,366) ' (69,613) j ’ —_ .
GAAP basis long term receivables . i 306,103 ) = —
Encumbrances, end of year : ' ' - 83,366 482,709 "L —
GAAP basis, end of year | $306,03 $ 803,795 ‘ $ 38,754
~
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' CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
"IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET BASIS -
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For The Year Ended September 30, 2003 v
Revised - . Variance With
_ Final . . Final Budget
) Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
~ Revenues _ o : .
Property tax . % 1,927,500 $ 1977426 ) $ . 49,926
Interest - , 100,000 31,635 " © '(68,365)
Miscellaneous ‘ — 25,504 ’ . 25504
Total Revenues - . _ 2,027,500 2,034,565 ' 7,065
Expenditures . . o - ‘ _ . o,
Debt service 2,050,725 2,031,314 - . 19,411
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures : . (23,225). 3,251 C 26,476
Fund Balances.~
Budget basis:
Unreserved: ) . . . : _ .
Beginning of year ) : 1,917,135 T 1,917,135 ' o 2
End of year - 1,893,910 1,920,386 26,476
Budget basis, end of year $ 1,893,910 . 1,920,386 % 26,476
Property tax - deferred revenue, end of year - (60,212).
GAAP basis, end of year - _ " $ 1,860,174
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- CITY OF ST. PETERS ‘MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES - BUDGET AND. ACTUAL
’ BUDGET BASIS - ENTERPRISE FUND - I
WATERWORKS/SANITARY SEWER FUND -
" (UTILITY OPERATING FUND) ‘
For The Year Ended September 30, 2003

Revised ' Variance With
Final ’ ) ~ Final Budget -
‘ Budget Actual* Positive (Neg‘atlve)
Revenues ‘ S
‘Water-and sewer . : .- . $ 5918515 . $ 5,915,883 $ (2,632)
. Interest = 100,000 . 91,985 (8,015)
. ‘Miscellaneous . - L 754,000 . 926,245 172,245
Total Revenues - 6,772,515 6,934,113 .161,598
Expenses T . ) o
) W»Personnel costs . o 2,461,388 2,494,118 ) - (32,730)
© . Utilities PR ' 410,850 420,332 T (9,482)
Purchased water T 841,000 323,954 17,046
Wastewater treatment costs 86,000 87,145 oL (1, 145)
Repairs and mainténance - - .- 572,630 402,510 . 170,120
. - Professional services .- L 573,920 556,492 . - . 17,428
© " Gas and fuel : ' . 34,000 41,083 . (7,083)
Rent S . 32,000 43,922 . . (11,922)
Supplies.and other expenses . 534,004 484,390 .. 49614
Total Expenses - . . 5,045,792 4,853,946 © .. 191,846
? Nef Revenues Before Capital
Expendltures And Debt Servnce L ) ' o ) o st
And Fees . 1,726, 72‘§‘ 2,080,167 . ..353444
o .iCapitgl‘ expenditures = - o - 285 982 . 274,435 o 11,547
Debt service and fees T B 1500 00007 7 148838 11,614
" Revenues Over (Under) Expenses - $ _(59,259) , $ - 317,346 $ - 330,283

* The City adopts a separate budget for the utility operating fund (part of tHe waterworks/sanitary
sewer enterprise fund). Actual amounts presented above include amounts encumbered at year end
‘which are treated as expenditures for purposes of the budget to actual comparison. Additionally,
capital expenditures and bond principal payments are recognized as expenses for budget purposes.

e
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
BUDGET BASIS - ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE FUND
For The Year Ended Septémber 30, 2003

- Revised ‘Variance With
Final Final Budget -
E Budget - Actual _ Positive (Negative)
Revenues - - ] L e
Trash collection $ 2,699,885 $ 2,740,919 $ 41,034
Miscellaneous 74,600 95,297 - 20,697
Interest T ' ' — 6 . : : 6
Total Revenues 2,774,485 2,836,222 . 61,737
Expenses o : : : o
Personnel costs o ‘ 1,386,025 1,381,835 . : - 4,190
Utilities I a 15,400 12,754 o - 2,646
Landfill fees o o 780,000 776,449 oo 3,551
" Repairs and maintenance o 238,875 213,668 25,207
. Capital expenditures: o o 149,055 123,674 N 25,481
Professional services I 25,430 . 27,795~ ' (2,365)
Gas and fuel ‘ 71,500 75,447 (3,947
Rent . 2,530 © 1,735 « . 795
Other expenses 147,575 - 174,107 - (26,532)
Total Expenses =~ T 2,816,390 2,787,364 : 29,026
Revenues Under Expenses % (41,905) $ 48 858 - . - $ 790,763
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. CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
'BUDGET BASIS - ENTERPRISE FUND - ’
CENTRAL MATERIALS PROCESSING FACILITY FUND

For The Year Ended September 30 2003

" Variance With

Revised
Final K Final Budget -
Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
Revenues : . '

- Tipping fees $ 2,107,500 $ 2,145,620 $ - 38,120
Recycling fees 503,875 496,779 (7,096)
Sales of recyclables 702,540 774,838 72,298
Earth Centre 200,000 208,447 . 8,447
Interest L — 1,943 1,943
Miscellaneous 95,000 120,694 25,694

Total Revenues 3,608,915 3,748,321 139,406
Expenses )
Personnel costs 1,221,105 1,266,490 (45,385)
Landfill fees 1,631,000 1,674,499 (43,499)
Utilities , 66,700 . 59,499 7,201
: Capltal expendltures 259,000 227,199 31,801
Professional services 16,460 7,198 9,262
Repairs and maintenance 65,400 37,778 27,622
Gas and fuel '16,000 14,872 1,128
Supplies and other expense 354,390 291,285 . 63,105
Total Expenses 3,630,055 3,578,820 ) 51,235
$ (21,1400 $ 169,501 $ 190,641

Revenues Over (Under) Expenses
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- CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

" Table 1

FUNCTION

2003

e

1998

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION-BUDGET BASIS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands_)

1997

2002 2001 2000 1999 1996 1995 1994
General Government ’ '$1,831 $1,444 $2,888 $i,739 $898 $640 $594 $848 $660 $1,102
Administration 4,828 5,023 4,837 4,373 4,361 3,704 3,500 " 3,643 2,617 2,511
Police 8,251 8,276 8,076 - 7,338 6,354 5,142 4,922 4,073 . 3,853 3,522
Municipal Court(2) 294 263 " 245 217 196 175 izé 135 136 0
Public Works - 6,045 5,440 5,841 4,976 4,956 4,142 2,135 2,570 2,390 2,403
Engineering 1,912 1,906 1,815 1,662 1,750 >1,409 1,421 1,370 1,110 1,130 -
Malntén;née 750 713 706 660 671 709 668 658 506 476
Health 525 569 517 454 441 330 L 413 - 309 . .463 © 203
Parks and Recreation 7,829 : 7,492 7,502 } 7,608 © 7,876 5,550 ' 5,468 . ;?4,707 3,791 2,528
Community Relations 782 s 730 767 618 415 404 374 333 629
Commu‘ni't-yvand Avrts Center 279 275 251 309 290 - ‘295 246 204 197 0
Street Construction 8,583 7,138 7,914 4,548 '8,789 10,076 7,265 6,176 8,765 2,339
Debt Sérvice "4,138 3,322 2,816 ) 2,353 (2,327 2,392 2,388 2,426 12,643 3,507
Total © . $46,107 $42,so7 , ‘$4;,138 $37,004 $39,527 "$34ngs $29,548 $27 493 $27,464  _$20,350

(1) Includes general speclal revenue, and debt service funds.

(2) Included as part of Police ‘expenditures prior to fiscal year 1995. ) '
(3) Included as p‘lrt of Community Relations expendltures prior to fiscal year 1995,
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

* Table 2

. SOURCE

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE-BUDGET BASIS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)"

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(1) Includes gteneral; special revenue, and debt service funds.

1996 1995 1994

Taxes $30,191 $29,757 . $27,101 $25,526 $0 $23,676 $20,337 $18,790 $17,918 $17,316
Licenses and Permits 845 1,030 v 926 643 | 476 : 389 376 402 415 344
Interest 307' ’ 388 1,056 ‘ 1,302 ) 1,46E}V ‘, 2,239 1,618 1,647 1,661 1,097
Intergo(lernmentalr 7,895 6,501 5,763 ’ 4,872 3,845 4,792 4,300 4,801 8,301 3,447
Fines and Forfeitures 1,353 1,373 982 969 1,043 762 700 541 528 » 370
Charges.for Services 3,527 3,499 3,294 3,396 3,487 3,525 3,014 - 2,610 2,455 624
Miscellaneous . 1,781 2,343 829 1,006 370 283 218 377 96 68
Total $45,899  $44,891  $39,951 $37,714 $10,689 $35,666 $30,563 $29,168 $31,374 $23,266
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_CITY. OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURT

Table 3

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE-BUDGET BASIS (1)

2002

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS - °
" (amounts expressed in thousands)

1994

(1) Includes general special revenue, and debt servlce funds.
(2) Use tax revenue relates to a local use tax enacted at the State lavel that was held by the courts to. be invalid for future years The
* revenue recognized represents the non-refundable portlon of the use tax collected by the City. The ability to collect use tax in future years

is contlngent onh voter approval

No such proposltlonAhas been submitted to the voters at this'time,. -

SOURCE 2003 2001 2000 - 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Sales Tax $18,753 $18,799 $16,589 $15,798 $14,216 - $13,789 $12,935 $11,750 $11,437 $11,010

Use Tax (2) - - 9y (10) (170) 1,289 - . . -

Property Tax ' 8,543 8,189 7,476 7,212 ° 6,525 6,121 "5,101 4,769 4,433 4,280

Utility Franchise Tax: R . :

Electric 1,656 1,691 1,630 1,643 1,602 1,580 1,428 1,445 1,362 1,281

Gas ° 719 553 894 500 447 505 522 479 349 434

Cableyision 318 319 307 161 149 139 127 122 . 108 99
' Cigarétte Tax 202 206 214 222 243 . ~253 224 225 2‘29 212

Total $30,191 ' 429,757 $27,101 425,526 $23,012 $23,676 $20,337 $18,790 $17,918 $17,316
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Table 4
CITY OF ST.-PETERS, MISSOURI

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)

RATIO OF

PERCENTAGE RATIO OF ' OUTSTANDING
TOTAL CURRENT OF CURRENT DELINQUENT TOTAL TOTAL TAX OUTSTANDING DELINQUENT
FISCAL TAX TAX TAXES TAX TAX COLLECTIONS TO DELINQUENT TAXES TO TOTAL
YEAR LEVY COLLECTIONS COLLECTED COLLECTIONS  _COLLECTIONS  _TOTAL TAX LEVY TAXES TAX LEVY
1994 $4,075 $ 3,986 97.82% % 88 $ 4,074 ' 99.98%  § 215 5.28%
1995 4,210 4,154 98.67% 123 4,277 101.59% 148 3.52%
1996 4,536 4,455 98.21% 78 4,533 ' 99.93% 151 3.33%
1997 4,755 4,696 98.76% 93 4,789 100.72%" 117 2.46%
1998 5,452 a 5,366 98.42% 60 - 5,426 99.52% 143 2.62%
1999 5,571 5,4931  98.62% 93 . 5,587 - 100.29% 127 2.28%
2000 - 6,106 6032 ¢ 98.79% 53 6,085 99.66% 148 2.42%
2001 6,111 6,010 98.35% B 6,101 99.84% 157 . 2.57%
2002 6,620 6,506 . 98.28% _ 92 6,597 99.65% i79 2.70%

2003 6,793 6,649 97.88% 115 6,764 99.57% 208 3.06%
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

’
\

Table 5

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY(1)

Real Property

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

-

Ratio of Total

Personal Property Total : Assessed Value
“Estimated Estimated Estimated To Total
Fiscal Assessed " Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Estimated
Year Value ‘Value Value “Value Value Value’ Actual Value
1994 352,730,222 $ 1,551,788, 814 $ 83,134,540 $ 249,653,273 -435,864,762 - $ 1,801,442,087 T 24.20%
1995 360,543,736 ©1,599,190,051 90,799,211 .272,670,303 451,342,947 1,871,860,354 24.11%
1996 385,235,344 1,718,572,159 99,218,910 297,954,685 484,454,254 2,016,526,844 24.02%
1997 397,499, 362 1,780,611,526 109,322,920 328,297,057 506,822,282 2,108,908,583 24.03%
1998 461,162,549 2,063,239,522 122,032,142 366,462,889 583,194,691 2,429,702,411 24.00%
1999 467,821,768 2,097,380,772 123,053,660 369,530,511 590,875,428 2,466,911,283 23.95%
2000 517,402,539 2,330,679,354 132,109,974 396,726,649 649,512,513 2,727,406,003 23.81%
2001 530;444,834 2,387,450,492 144,782,271 434,346,813 675,227,105 2,821,797,305 23:93%
2002 , -, 584,499,084 . -1 2,635;570,590 148,459,133 445,377,399 732,958,217 3,080,947,989 23.79%
2003 594,223,029 2,676,872,745 149,798,119 . 449,394,357 744,021,148 3,126,267,102 23.80%
(1) Property is subclassified for purposes of assessment as follows:

(i) commercial real property - 32% of true value, (ii) residential real

property - 19% of true value, (iii) agricultural property - 12% of productlvlty '
" value, and (iv) personal property -.33- 1/3% of book’ value

Source:

,Office of the St.'Charles County Clerk.
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

Table 6

PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Per $100 of Assessed Valuation)

Overlapping School Districts(1)

St. Charles County

Fort Zumwalt -St. Charles Francis Howell Community College

Fiscal Debt Debt Debt Debt

Year Operating Service Total Operating Service Total Operating Service Total Operating Service Total
1994 $3.2600 $0.8300 $4.0900 $3.4500 $0.4000 $3.8500 $3.7300 $0.8900 $4.6200 $0.1100 $0.1400 $0.2500
1995 3.2300 0.8600 4,0900 3.4500 0.4000 3.8500 3.7500 0.8900 4.6400 0.1300 0.1200 0.2500
1996 3.2400 0.8600 4.1000 3.6100 0.4100 4.0200 4.2900 0.8900 .5.1800 0.1300 0.1200 0.2500
1997 .3.2100 0.8900 4.1000 3.6500 0.4100 4.0600 4.2900 0.8900 5.1800 0.1300 0.1200 0.2500
1998 3.6000 0.8900 4.4900 3.5200 0.4900 4.0100 4,0500 0.8900 '4,9400 0.1300 0.1200 0.2500
1999 3.6200 0.9000 4,5200 3.8200 0.4500 4.2700 4.0000 0.9400 4.9400 0.1700 0.0800 0.2500
2000 3.4700 0.9000 4.3700 3.7200 0.5500 4.2700 3.9500 ©0.9400 4.8900 0.1700 0.0800 © 0.2500
2001 3.4700 - 0.9000 4.,3700 3.7252 0.5448 4.2700 3.8900 . 0.9400 4.8300 0.1700 0.0800 0.2500
2002 3.3534 - 0.9000 4.2534 - 3.6086 0.6614 4.2700 3.7618 0.9313 4.6931 0.1673 0.0800. 0.2473
2003 3.3538 0.9000 4.2538 3.4199 :0.8501 4.2700 3.7607 0.9313 0.1635 0.0800 0.2435

o

4.6920

(1) The Clty Is servéd by three échdol districts and the &t. Charles County Community College District, which began operations in 1986. While all three school districts overiap the
City, none of the school districts overlap another school district. )

Source: -Tax rates ‘provided by réspective school district.
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\ Table 6, Cont.
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURT ‘

Fiscal

City of St. Peters _

PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
“(Per $100 of Assessed Valuation)

St. Charles County

Debt : Debt . School )
Year Operating Service - Total Operating Service Total District(1) Others(2) Total
1994 $ 0.4800 $ 0.4500 0.9300 $ 0.3400 $ 0.0400 $ 0.3800 $ 4.8700 - $ 0.9500 - % 7.1300
1995 0.2800 0.6500 0.9300 0.3100 0.0400 0.3500 4.8900 1.2000 - 7.3700
1996 0.6800 0.2500 0.9300 0.3000 0.0300 ° . 0.3300 . 5.4300 1.2400 7.9300 "
1997 0.6800 0.2500 0.9300 0,3000 0.0300 0.3300 5.4300 1.24:00 7.9300
1998 0.6800 0.2500 0.9300 0.2900 0.0300 0.3200 - © 5.1900 »1.1900 7.6300
1999 0.6600 0.2700 0.9300 0.2800 0.0200 0.3000 . 5.1900 1.2400 7.6600
2000 0.6600 0.2700 0.9300 0.2600 -+ 0.0200 . ..~ 0.2800 . . '5.1400 1.2300 7.5800"
2001 0.6400 0.2600 0.9000 ) 0.2600 0.0100 '0.2700 . 5.0800 1.2300 7.4800
2002 0.6400 0.2600 0.9000 . 0.2480 0.0013 0.2493 4,9404 1.2951 7.3848
2003 0.6400 0.2600

0.8000 0.2475 . - 0.2475 49355 . 1.3149 7.3979

(1) The City Is sérved by three school districts and the St, Charles County Community College District, which.began operations in 1986. While all three school Districts overlap the'

City, none of the school districts overlap another school dlstrict Accordlngly, the tax rate for the Schooi District represents the-largest rate for a school district in any year
plus the tax rate for the Community College.

(2) Includes the tax rate for Central County Fire and Rescue, St Charies County Ambulance District, Handlcapped Facillties Board, St. Charles County Dispatch & AIarm Agency
and St. Charles County Library District.

(3) In addition to the tax rate shown, there is a $.53 tax rate (surcharge) Imposed on aIl Real Estate Sub-Class 3 Commerclai properties iocated in St. Charles County

3
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CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

Table 7

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

- Ratio of
Net Bonded Net
Gross Net Debt to Bonded

Fiscal Assessed Bonded Less Debt Bonded Assessed Debt per
Year- Popul'atibon(}) Value Debt Service Fund Debt Value Capita
1994 47,200 $ 435,864,762 $ 26,355,000 - $ 464,642 $ 25,890,358 5.94% 549
1995 48,100 451,342,947 25,400,000 827,698 24,572,302 5.44% 511
1996 >4-§.,000 484,454,254 24,600,000 898,658 23,701,342 4.89% 484
1997 49,500 506,822,282 i 24,270,000 1,138,767 23,131,233 4.56% 467
1998 . 50,300 ., 583,194,691 23,240,000 1,202,106 22,037,894 3.78% - 438
1999 50,850 590,875,428 22,435,000 970,755 21,464,245 3.63% 422°
2000 51,381 649,512,513 ' 31,205,000 1,381,538 29,823,462 4.59% 580
2001 53,000 . 675,227,105 29,995,000 1,719,317 28,275,683 4,19% 534
2002, 56,000 732,958,217 30,905,000 1,865,237 29,039,763 © 3.96% 519
2003 57,000 744,021,148 29,250,000 1,860,174 27,389,826. 3.68% 481

(1) Estimates made by the City.
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: .Table 8
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI R
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
. FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT"
TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

. Ratio of
Total Debt Service
Total . General ) " toGeneral
Fiscal ) Interest and Debt Govermmental Governmental
Year Principal Fees . _Service . 'Expenditures (3) . Expenditures
1594 - $ 1,350 3 2,157 $ 3507 ¢ - 20,350 ° 17.2%.
1995 Y- 1,688 2,643 27,464 . 9.6%
1996 . 800 1,626 2,426 ' 27,493 ' 8.8%
1997 550 1,838 (1) © 2,388 29,548 - © 81%
1998 1,030 1,362 2,392 34,979 . 6.8%
1999 1,075 1,252 (2) 2,327 39,527 5.9%
- 2000 1,230 1,123 2,353 37,004 . 6.4%
2001 . 1,210° 1,604 ' 2,814 . 44,138 . “ 4%
2002 . 1,590 ° 1,519 3,109 42,607 . '7.3%
2003 1,655 1,635 _ 3,290 46,107_' g o 74%

(1) Includes $ 581,000 contribution from bond reserves toward the refundlng of the 1988 and 1989 general obllgatlon bonds
(2) Includes $ 247,000 contribution from bond reserves toward the refundlng of the 1993 general obllgatlon bonds.
(3) Total General Governmental Expenditures are budget based. .
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, 4 ‘ Table 9
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI -

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT A E
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS : N
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 a

Net General

Obligation ’ Percentage . Amount
: - 'Bonded Debt : Applicable to Applicable to
Jurisdiction ) Outstanding(1) St. Peters(2) : St, Peters .
Direct: o ’
City of St. Peters } i $29,250,000 100.00% ‘ $29,250,000
Overlapping: o
St. Charles County Ambulance District $5,750,000 16.48% | $947,600
Central County Fire and Rescue 9,175,000 65.80% 6,037,150
St. Charles County Community Coliege 29,090,000 16.58% 4,823,122
St. Charles School District 82,770,517 © o 7:02% 5,810,490
Fort Zumwalt School District R-II s i 114,675,000 ) © 30.02% 34,425,435
Francis Howell Schoo! District 198,178,987 20.99% ’ 41,597,769
Total Overlapping $439,639,504 $93,641,567
Total Direct And Overlapping Bonded Debt ' $468,889,504 ) , $122,891,567

(1) Outstanding bond amounts were provided by the respective taxing district and excludes $3,558,000 of Neighborhood Improvement District Bonds which are a general
obligation of St, Charles County but are to be paid by special assessments levied in the Neighborhood Improvement District. . :
(2) Percentages ware based on total assessment data provided by the respective taxing district and by the office of the St. Charles County Assessor,
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o . Table 10
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI '
~ REVENUE BOND COVERAGE o
WATERWORKS/SANITARY SEWER FUND-BUDGET BASIS .
: LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Net Revenue

Fiscal . Gross Operating Available For Debt Service Requirements

Year - Revenues Expenses(1) Debt S_ervic'e Prin;ipal ) Interést and Fees Total Coverage

1994 $ 4,487 $ 2,601 $ 1,886 605 $ 844 1,449 1.302

1995 4,903 2,774 . 2,129 675 815 1,490 1.429

1996 '5,351 3,139 2,212 705 783 1,488 1.487

1997 5,714 3,760 1,954 790 740 1,530 1.277

1998 5,501 3,929 1,572 825 695 1,520 1.034

1999 5,834 4,242 1,592 865 645 1,510 1.054

2000 6,129 4,375 1,754 910 592 1,502 1.168

2001 5,588 . 4,929 1,659 985 532 1,517 . 1.094
.. 2002 6,782 5,050 * 1,732 1,045 452 1,497 1,157

2003 6,934 4,854 2,080 1,240 248 1,488 1.398

A ; ) Regrua;ent§ total budget basis-operating expenses less capital outlay.:

e
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) Table 11
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

2002 Percentage of
Assessed : Total Assessed
Taxpayer ) . Type of Business Value Valuation(1)
Waestfield America Shopping Mall $19,598,560 ) 2.63%
Alrwick Industries, Inc. (Reckitt & Coleman, Inc.) Chemicals : 12,851,219 : 1.73%
May Co. Inc : . Department Store 4,314,218 0.58%
Costco Membership Department Store 4,163,360 0.56%
Wentzaway Corp Strip Malt . 3,031,330 : 0.41%
Sears, Roebuck’'and Company . Department Store 2,927,782 0.39%
JC Penney's Properties, Inc. . Department Store 2,863,963 0.38%
Jungs Station Association L e - Apartments ! , 2,786,760 0.37%
John H. Harland Printing Co : Printing 2,752,416 0.37%
Grewe Limited Partnership Strip Mall 2,734,860 0.37%
(1) Based on 2002 assessed valuation equal to $744,021,148
Source; Office of the St. Charles County Assessor.
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Table 12
CITY OF :ST. PETERS, MISSOURI :
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Per
Capita Unemployment
Year PoEulétiong 1) Income(2) . Rate(3)
1994 . 47,200 $ - 3.30%
1995 ’ . 48,100 - 3.00%
1996 - 49,000 - N 2.60%
1997 ' - 49,500 - - 2.40%
1998 50,300 . - 2.80%
1999 ‘50,850 ' - . 1.50%
2000 51,381 ’ 22,792 2.20%.
2001 53,000 . . - na
2002 . 56,000 ' ) - na
2003 . 57,000 - na
School Enroliment Last Ten Years(4) ' J

R Fort N Francis
Year Zumwalt St. Charles . Howell
1994 12,000 6,393 . 15,491
1995 11,449 : 6,380 : 16,413
1996 ’ 12,595 6,561 17,325
1997 : - 13,720 : i 6,587 18,240
1998 ‘ 14,488 6,338 18,108
1999 16,000 6,205 18,831
2000 15,973 i 6,205 18,832
2001 . 16,526 6,190 18,831
2002 ' 17,281 6,090 _ 18,649
2003 . 18,063 5,876 18,389

(1) Allfigures are estimates made by the City except for 2000 which is an official count from the United State Census Bureau.
(2) Per capita income represents the periodic estimates made by the Bureau of Census.

(3) All figures are estimates of the Missouri Division of Employment Security.

(4) Data provided by the respective school district.
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. Téb{e 13
CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI
PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS ’
Property Value . Commerclal Residenttal
) Construction(1) Constriction(2)
. . . Number ' Number
Year Residential Commerclal Agricultural Total Of Units Value Of Units Value
1994 $ 1,098,131,526 $ 448,231,788 3, 5,425,500 $ 1,551,788,814 51 3 27,116,434 421 $ 42,359,327
1995 3) _  1,156,450,105 438,447,113 N 4,292,833 . 1,599,190,051 29 28,914,889 381 ) 41,791,488
1996 1,259,878,053 454,076,106 4,618,000 1,718,572,159 44 37,487,781 340 38,310,621
1997 1,320,006,163 457,127,738 3,477,625 i 1,780,611,526 50 25,961,550 327 32,986,885
1998 1,526,562,921 533,572,009 3,104,592 - 2,063,239,522 ' 45 23,366,288 T 365 36!49i,082
1999 1,559,386,211 534,895,203 3,099,358 - 2,097,380,772 58 . 47,951,903 264 26,328,171
2000 1,750,733,379 575,848,400 4,097,575 2,330,679,354 ; 58 .- 38,154,195 150 . 12,095,946
2001 1,790,658,526 593,023,391 3,768,575 2,387,450,492 " 40 24,923,011 823 49,161,645
2002 1,979,351,652 648,379,988 7,838,950 2,635,570,590 ' “37 47,701,387 218 24,285,105

2003 2,006,578,226 662,689,119 7,605,400 - 2,676,872,745 79 . 61,680,082 431 55,996,636

[¢8] Bxcludes permits issued for miscellaneous purposes and tenant finishes.
(2) Excludes permits issued for miscellaneous purposes. ,
(3) The decline in cemmercial property assessment and increase in residential assessment is attributable to a legislative change which reclassified appartments from commercial to residential.

Source: Property values were provided by the St. Charles County Clerk.
' Construction data from the City of St. Peters, Missouri.

@
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S o L Table 14
‘ _CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI . .
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
'Date of Incorporation <1910

Form of Government
Number of employees (excluding pohce officers):
Full-time -
Part-time and seasonal
‘Area-in square miles:

City of St. Peters facilities and services:
Miles of streets .
Numbeér of street lights -

Culture and recreation:
Communlty centers:
City Hall
. .- Community and Arts Center
*  -Sports Center(gymnasium)
- Senior Citizen Center(includes a fitness trailer)

REC-PLEX(2 pools; ice rink; ice/in-link rink; gymnasium; ﬂtness facnlltles),

~Parks
Park acréage
Golf Courses
Outdoor swimming pools
Tennis Courts
_Miles of hiking/biking trails
~ Police Protection:
Number of stations
“Number.of police officers
Average number of phyS|ca| arrests per month
Average number of calls for-service per: -month
. Sewerage System:
*"“Miles of sanitary sewers
- .Number of treatment plants
Number of service connections
Daily average treatment in gallons -
Daily capacity of treatment pIant in gallons . RS
Miles of storm sewers S , c o
- Water System:.. .0 .. : o ‘ .-
Miles of water mains -
Number of service connections -
Number of fire hydrants =
- Daily average consumption in gallons
Maximum daily. capacity in gallons:
Water treatment plant :
City of St. Louis system(per contract)

City Admlnlstrator

283
285
21.9

o225
© 2,39

wu
’ Nl .
NN W OWR PR

10,0

1

85
293
3,598

210

1

17,207
5,700,000
6,900,000
122

241
15,762

- 1,475
5,200,000

6,000,000
9,858,000
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Table 14, Cont.

CITY OF ST. PETERS, MISSOURI

"MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity:
Fire Protection(1):
Number of stations
Number of employees:
Full-time
Volunteers
Average number of calls per month
Average number of inspections conducted per month
Education:
Number of elementary schools(2)
Number of certified elementary school instructors(2)
Number of secondary schools(2)
Number of certified secondary school instructors(2)
Number of community colleges(3) )
Hospitals: : '
.Number of hospitals
Number of licensed patient beds

Largest Employers:
Number of employees:

Barnes St. Peters Hospital

" Fort Zumwalt School District R-II
City of St. Peters
Boon Center Inc
Schnucks

- Continental Sprayers
Reckitt & Bénckiser Inc. .

“Francis Howell School District R-III
Shop-n-Save
Woodbridge Foam Manufacturmg

(1) Two districts provide fire protection to the City. During fiscal year 1998, St. Peters Fire
Protection District consolidated with St. Charles Fire Protection. District forming-Central
County Fire and Rescue. These statistics are for Central County Fire and Rescue as'it
covers the majority of the City.. »

(2) These numbers reflect private schools and schools in the public districts that

" service residents of the City of St. Peters.
(3) The community college campus is less than one mile from the City limits.

111

" 76"

360

350

17

~ .. 815

561

543
534
497
201
201
201
200 .
. 197
163

. 140
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